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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT

14 Villa lndependent S¢hool District
500 East 9" Street
La'Villa, Texas 78562

Report on the Fifancial Statements

AWe have.sidited the acconipanying fifiancial statements of the. govemmmental activities, each m‘a}or fuind,
and the dggregate remaining find informaitioii of La Vilia Independent School District, as of and for theyear
énded June 30, 2021, and 1he rélatéd noies to the findncial statements, which collectively comprise the La
“Vill4 Independent School District's bagic finaricial statemerits as listed in'the 1able of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible. for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with-accounting principles genérally accepted in the United States of Aimerica; thisinclides
ihe design, implementation; and ‘maih‘{epange of internal control welevant. to the preparation and fair
p’ri:s';em_a‘ﬁqﬁ of financial statements that are freé from.material misstaterient, whether dize to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

‘Our responsibility s to éxpress opinions on thése financial statemeénis based o1 oitt audit. Wecdnducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. generally. accepted in the United States of America:and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Auditng Standards, jssued by the
Compiroller General of theUnited States, Those standards require that we plan and perform, the-audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finanicial staterrients are free from matetial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procédiires to-obidin andit evidencé about the amounts-and disclosures in thé
finaricial statements. The procédures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
therisks of material misstatement of the finantial statements, whiether due ta fraud or ervor. 1n making those
risk assessments, lie auditor considers internal contrg] televant fo the -entity's preparation and. fair
presentation of thié financial stitéments in ofdér to design audit procedures that afe appropriate: i the
circimstances, butnot for fiie purpose-of expressing an opinioh dn'the effectivenéss of the entity's intémal.
control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An:audit also inclindes evaluating the appropriateness of

accouritinig policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by managenient,

s well as-evaluatiiig the overall preserittion.of the financial statements.

We beli‘ev:e that the zudif evidénce we have-obtainéd is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
augdit opinions. ”




Opinions o

Isi our opinién, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,. in all material 4réspects,"j:hé.
réspective: financial. position of the govemnmental ‘activities, gach major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information ofthe La Villa Independent School District as.of June 30,2021, and the respective changes,

‘in financial position, and, where applicablé, cash flows thereof forthe yeéar then ended in aceordance, with

accounting principles.generally accepted in the United States.of America,

Other Matters )
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generaily .accepted in the United States of Armerica reguire thet ithe
Mariageinent's Discitssion ind Analysis, the Sehiedule-of Revenies, Expenditures; and Changes in Fund
Balance, Budgetand Actual = General ‘Fund, the Schedule of District’s Proportionate Share ofthe Net

Pengion Liability and the Schedule:of the District Contributions — Teacher Retirénient Systeni of

Texas, the Schedule of the Distfict Proportiotiate Share of the Net 'OPEB Liability ~ Teachef
Retirement Systern of Texas, the Schedule of District Contribintions to the Teacher Retirement System

oFTékas OPEB Plan, and the related Notes to Reqiired Supplemenitary Information as’ listed. in the fable
6?cﬁniénf§;ba,prpsqntéd 16 supplement the basic financial statements. Such Tnfonnation,’altiloug'!i notd-part
of the basic financial statemérits, is required by the Govérnméntal Accounting Standards Board; who
considers it to beran essentidl pait of financial teporting for placing the basic firiancial ;siaterrﬁlpn‘c's inan
appropriate operational, economic, or historical coritekt, We have,applied certain limited. procédures t&-
the requited si\pplementary information in accotdance with-auditing standards generally accepted in
the. United Stiités bf America, which consisted of inquiriés.of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the informition for consistency with mmanagement's responsés o our
ifiquiries, the basic-financial Statements, and other knowledge we oblained during o audjt of the
basic financial statements. We do mot express an opinion or provide any-assurance on the information:
becavse the liniited procedures-do not provide 1s-with sufficient evidence to express an opinion br provide
any assurance: )

Orther Information

Our audit was conducted for ihe purpose of forming, gpintons on the ﬁhandial statements thiat cuil_ectiv_aly
comprise thé La Villa Independént School District's basic finan¢ial statements. The coribining and

‘u

individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the TEA ri:quir‘egi'schedulps, -and schedule of expenditures:
of federal .awards, as required by Title 2 US, Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unpiform
Administrative Reqiréments, Cost Prirciples, and Andit Requirements for Federal Awards, are présented
for purposes of-additional analysis and are not a required part of the biasic financial statements:

The combifing &nd individtal foAmajor fund financial stateménts, the TEA requited Schedules; and
schedule 6f expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of rianagement and were derived from:
and telate-directly fo the underlying accounting and ather records used to prepare the basic findncial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statéments and cértain additional procedurés, including comparing and reCoticiling siich
information direcfly 16, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare. the basic financial
statements or to the basic, financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in.accordance
With-auditing standards generdily accepted in the United States 6f America. Tt oliropinion, the combining
and individual, nionmajor fund financial statements, the TEA .required schedulgs, and schediile of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material réspects, in yelation to the: basic finaricial

statements as gwhc)le; The combining gnd_ individual nonmajor fund financil statements, the TEArequiréd
schedules, and schedule of expenditures of federal ‘awards have not been subjected to the andifing
procedires gp;ilied‘ in the audit ‘of the.basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an

opinion ¢r provide-any assutance on them,
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 17,
2021, on our consideration of the La Villa Independent School District's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering La villa Independent School
District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

/aa/%ma@ 2 &"W'":Y' b x4

Corpus Christi, Texas
December 17, 2021
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In this section of the Aniual Financial and Compliance Report, we, the managers of La Villa Independent
School Distnc’r, discuss and analyze the District's financial performanca during the year ended June 30,
2021 ‘Pleasé read it in conjunction with the-dndependent anditors' éport an page 1, and the District's Basic

Financial Statéiments, which begin on page 13.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* The District'snet pusmon ~vas $2;207,587, which is a $724,026 incréase comparedto last year’s balance:
of $1,573,561. The incréase is due,'in part, to the-effect of ani: incredse in revenues and assets.

« During the year, the Disirict had tax revefues of $1,933,908 which included $1,451,664 and $482, 244
Tor property taxes, levied for general purpdses and debt service, respectively,

e

Thé Genetal Funnd ended theyear with a fund balance of $2,460,031 which is an increase of $820,762

from thepnor year. The Dabt Service Fund ended the yedr with a find balance 6f $615,042; which
xepresents an increase from the priot year rof $36,513, Capital Projects: funds had a total fund; baTance
of ($17,886), which was unchanged from the prior yedr.

(4]

‘Revenues from governmental acfivities were $10,777,214, whichrepresents a $1,081,776 increase from

the pridr yeat.

'OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'

"This annual report consists 6f three parts—management s discussioit and analysis (this Section),

the basic financial statements, and required supplememary mﬁ:mmtwﬂ The basic financial
statements include two kinds of statements that present different viéws of the District:

.

The’ ﬁrst two statements are government-wide fi Jinancial statements that provide, both long-
term and short:teri information about the District's overall financial status,

The fernaining statements are fund financial stateinents that focus on individual partsof the.
government, reporting the Distriét’s operations in more defail than the government:wide
statements.

The governmental funds statements tell hovwr.general governiment services were ﬁmmced in
the s’hort“ termas well as what remaing for fiuture spending.

Proprzefary fund statemeénts offer short- and forig-term financial information about the
acfivities the government operates Iiké businesses. The District maintains one type of

propristary fund, an internal service: fund. The. Internal service fund is used to report

activities of the District’s self-insurance program. Because thése services predummateiy

‘benefit goveramental rather than busmess—typc fumictions, the Internal Service Fund.is

Teporied’ with governmental activities in “the govemmentmude financial statements,
Propnetary funds prowde the same type of information as the govemment—mde financial
statemients, only-in more detail. The Internal Service Fund is presented as a single,
aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.




Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which
the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources
in question belong.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the
district’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.
Immediately following the required supplementary information on pensions are the two
budgetary schedules on the general fund and major special revenue fund. The combining
statements in connection to nonmajor governmental funds and fiduciary funds are then
presented.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide data that are more detailed. The statements are followed by a section of
required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the
financial statements.

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the
portion of the District government they cover and the types of information they contain. The
remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the
structure and contents of each of the statements.

Figure A-1 Major Features of the District’s Government-wide
and Fund Financial Statements

[Type of Statements | [Government-wide |Governmental Funds  |[Proprietary iducia

Scope Entire district The activities of the Activities of Instances in
Government (except) district that are not District similar which the district
Fiduciary funds) proprietary or to private is the trustee or
and the district's fiduciary business; self agent for someone
component units insurance else’s resources
Statement of Balance Sheet Statement of Statement of
Reguired Financial ____  Netrosition, B——— et positian., ... fduciary.nel Resitian
Statements Statement of Statement of revenues,  Statement of Statement of
Activities expenditures & changes  rev, exp.& in fiduciary
in fund balances changes in net position
T net position
Statement of cash flows  Statement of
flows
Accounting basis Accrual accounting Modified accrual Accrual accounting Accrual accounting
and measurement and economic accounting and and economic economic resources
focus resources focus current financial focus focus




USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

“This annual repn:rtcﬂns:sts of a seties of financial’ statements. The Eovemiment-wide: financial statéments include the

Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities (on pages 13 and 14), These provids information ahont the
activities of thie District as a whole and present 2 longer-term view of the stn-zct'spmperty and debt obligations and
other financial matters. They reflect the flow of total economic resources in a manner stmilar to the financisl reports
of a business enterprise.

Fund financial statements (starﬁng .on page 15) report the D:sfnct‘s operahuns in ¥hore detail than'the gu\remment-
wide statements by providing information aboiit the District's most sigoificant fimds, For gnvemmental activities,
these- statements &il how seryices were ﬁnanced in the hort term as wel{ as what Tesources remain for; future
spendmg They ‘refléct the flow of citirént financial resources, and sipply the basis for tix levies and the
appropriations budget. Far ‘proprictary activities, fund financial statements tellhow gnuds or services of the District
were sold to departmettts within the District orto external customers and fiow the sales reverues covered the éxpenses
of the. goeds or Services. The remammg statements f‘ dux:iary statemenis ptovzde finatcial mfonnat:om about:
activities for which the District acts solely asa frustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the. distdet,  ”

The notesto the financial statements (starting o= page 20) pramde naryative éxplanations or addmonal data needed
for full disclosure f the government:wide statements or the find finaneial statements.

The. combiiing statetents fornorningjcr ﬁmds coritalf éven mord fnformation shotit the sttnct's inidividnal fimds.
These arenotrequired by TEA. Ihe section hbeled Other Schedules cantdin data used by. mnmiormg or regulatory
-apencies for assurance that fhe Dlstnct is usingz: fimds supplied in complisnce with the terms of grants.

Reporting the District as 1 Whole
The Statemeiit of Net positiori and tire Statement of Activitles

The énalysis of thé District's overall financial condition and operations begins on page 13. Tis primary ‘purpose isto
show whether the D:stnct ls‘better uff or worsg'off as a rcsult of the year's ‘activities. The Statement of Net position
includes all the District’s assets and hablimes 7t the end of The year while the Statement of Activities includes all the

Tévenues and | expenses generated by the. 'Dlstnct's operatwns during the yedr. “These apply the accrual basis of
.accountmg ‘which is the basis-used by private séctor companies.

All-of the cuirent year's révénues and expenses aré taken ifito account regardless of whén cash is received or paid.
The District's revenues are divided i mtn those pmwded by outs:de parties who share the casts 6f some programs, such
as tuition received from students from outside the district and grants provided by the U.S, Dcpartmant of Fducation
to assist childrén with disabilities of from disadvantaged hackgrnunds {program revenites), and teverines provided
by the taxpayers or by TEA in equalization finding processes (genétal revenues), Allthe District'sassets areveported

whether they serve the current year.or fiture years: Ligbilities are considered regardiess of whether they must be-

paid in the current or fisture years,

‘These twa statements report the District's net position ; and changés in them, The District's net: pusmcm {the diffeterice
between assefs and hablhhes} provufe one nigdsure of the District's findneial health, or financial EDSltltln. Gver ume,
increases of decreases inthe District's nét: posmon are one indicator of whether its finanicial hiéalth is impraving or
detériorating. To fuily assess the nverall health of the Dlstnci; howévet, you should consider uonﬁnanmal factors ag
well, such as changes in the: sttnct's average dmly atteriddnce or its"property tex base and the dondition of the
District's facilities. .

'In the Stateinent of Net position and the Statendent of Activities, we present thie District’s one kind of sctivity:

+ Governmental acuwtles—lviust of -the District’s basic services are reported hers, mcludmg the instruction,
counseling; co-curricnlar activities, fooﬁ setvices, transportation, maintetiance, comimunity Services, and general
administration. Pmpeﬂy taxes, tnition, fees, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

L1



Reporting the Districi's Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial starements begin on page 15 and provxds detailed information about the most sigrificant fimds=
not the District as a whole: Laws and contracts require the District to establish some funds, such ds grants feceived
under the Evety Stndent Succeeds Act from the U:S. Departient 6f Education. The D:stnct's -adniinistration
establishes many other funds to help it control and ¥ fnanage money for particular purposes {like campus- actwmes)

‘The Distsiet’s govemm&ntal funds uss the following accounting approach:

» ‘Govérnmental, funds—Most of the District’s basic services are reported in govemmental funds. These use wodified
acpmal accointing (a meﬂmd that measures the receipt and disbursement of cash and all other’ financial assels
ithat can be readily converted to cash) and réport balances ! that are available for future spending, The govemmental
fufid. statements ptmnde a detailed short-term view' of the District's general operations and the basi¢ semces;t
prowdes We describe the H]ﬁérences befween govemmental activities (reported in the Statemant of Net pos.1twn
and the Statement of Activities) and govemmental Funds in‘reconciliation schedules followmg each of the fund
Finaricial statements,

The District as Trustee
Reporting the District’s Fiduciary Responsibilitles

s The District i is the trustee, or fiduciary, for thoney raised by studerit activities and alomnse scholarship
‘programs. All of theD:shct‘sﬁdncnmyacthhes arereported ini separate Statements of FJduclmy Net position
.on page 18, ‘Wa exclude these resources from the Districi's other financial statements becanse the District
canniot useihese assets to finance its operations. The Distfict is only respoisible for ensuring that the assefs
teported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FiNANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Disfrict implemented GASB ‘Staternent #34 in 2001, Qur analysis focuses on the net position (’I‘abie Tyand
changes in netposition (Teble 1) ‘of the District's governmental-type activitiés between current ard prior year.

Netposutwn of the District's governmental activities increased from $1,573,561 to $2,297,587. 'Tha increase is parfly
duié to-an increase in revenues, Unrestricted net position —the part of net pnsitmu that can be nsed fo finance-day-to-
day aperations without constraints established by debt covenants, enablmg legmlatlon, or other légal fequirerneits —
was {$3,_2_2? 880,) at-June 30, 2021 which represents,a $624,182 increase from prior year. The District's revenues
exceeded expenditures by. 3724 026. The District paid bonds and other Icng-term debt in the amnunt of $549,541.
Furthermore, acquxred capital assets, mcludmg tomplated. capﬁal projects; amounted to'a net after disposals, before
depreciation, of $45, £37. The DISTIlCt recorded depreciation in the amount of $635,365. In addition, accumulated
depreciation was $8 ,197,654 as of June 30, 2021, (See nofe D on page 30)

Total Revenue increased by $1,081,776 during the year ended June 30,2021, Grants and Contributions, accounted
for. a majority of the.increase. Totﬂ Expendltures increased by $1,073,620 during the year. S:g:lficant Increases,
included Instruction and Facilities Maintenance and Operation.

The District has no business-type activities.



ASSETS
‘Cash and Cash Equivdlerits
‘Propéfty Taxes Reteivable (Deliiguent)
Allowance for:Uncoilectible Taxes
thie from Other Governmients
Due from Fiduclary Funds
Prepayments
Total Curfelit Assets:
Capital Aéséts:
Land
Bulldiigs, Net
Furniture and Equipifient, Nat
Total Noncurieiit Assets
Total Assets
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charga for Refundlng
Deferrad Outflow Relatéd ta TRS Pension
Deferred Outflow Rélated to. TRS OPEB
Total Deferred Outflows of Resofirces
LIABILITIES
AEEDUnts Payable
{nterest Payable
Accriled Wages Payable
Dueta Fiducidry Funds
Dug to'Other Governments
DUt to Student Groifps
Accrued Expenses
Nonturrent Llabilities
Due Withir Ohe Year
Due in More Than Grie Year:
Net Pension Liability (District's Share)
Net OPES Liability (ﬁistricts."ihar‘é_)“
Total Liabiliities
DEFERRED INFLQW OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow Related to TRS “Pension
Deferred Inflow Relatéd t6 TRS OPEB
“Tota] Deferred Inflows of Resaiirces
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
‘Restricted for Federal and State Programs
Restricted for Debt Servica
Unrestricted
Totai Net Position

Y
a

Table'l
LA VILLA INDEPENDENT
SCHOOL DISTRICT
Governmenial Activities
. 2071 ‘. 2020 . . Change
5 1831319 & 1609692 & 221627
236,198 258,849 (22651)
123, 620) 129, 457) 5837
1,754,881 1,325,007 429,874
775,957 140,277 635,680
... 26426 140,277 133,851),
-4,601/161 3,444,645 1;156,516
147,793 147,793 -
16,326, 324 16,633,634 {305,810)
290 706 573;423 (282717
16,765,323 17,354,850 -{589,527)
3 21,366,484  '$ 20,799,495 % 566,989
70,882 79,848 {8,966)
1,154,083, 1,256,143 {96,060)
824,502 ;898,422 (73,920}
2,049,467 2228413 "~ {178,946)
223,516 398,441 (174,925)
145,014 153,532 (8,518)
268,249 751,859 16,390
773,517 194,362 575,155
76,814 42,173 35,641
1,877 Ay (245}
7,100 6783 27
657,825 616,330 47495
11,783,375 11,912,347 (625,472}
2,507,615 2,376,575 231,040
2,446,508 3,049,473 (602,964}
18391411 18,897,497 {506,085)
545,025 - 560,569 {114;544)
2,180,927 1,756,004 424,933
12,726,952 2,416,573 310,379
4,895,004 4831 673 63,331
157821 15,421 -
615,042 578,529 36,513
(3,227,880) {3,852,062) 624,182
5 ‘2,297,587 5 1,573,561 5 724,026




Tablell
LA VILLA INDEPENDENT
SCHOOL DISTRICT
Governmental Governmental
Activitias Activities
REVENUES 2 2020 Change

Program Revenues: .
Charges for Services S 82,419 5 03876 5 (121457)
Opérating Grants anid Contributions 1,545,181 1,283,480 261,701

General Revenues: )
Property Taes, Levied for General Purgoses 151,564 1,234,554 PAVAELY
Praperty Taxes; Levied for Debt Service 482,244 437914 44330
Grants and Contribttions nof Restricted 7,183,755 6,367,633 816,122
Investment Eamings 472 5074 -~ (3,802)
Miscellaneous Local and intermediste Revenpes 31470 162,907 {131,438)
Total Révenue , - 10,777214 9,605438. 1081776
Expenses:

Instruction 4,534,215 3,885,928 648,291
instructional Resources and Media Sarvices 148,525 127,172 21,353
Curriculum and Instructional Staff Development 457,863 391,903 65,954
School Leadership- 554,029 507,137 46,892
Gtildance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services 303,763 292,561 1202
Heslth Senvices 142531 135,241 7,290
Student (Pupil) Transporation 73360 120,348 {46,988)
Foud Services 582,780 502,670 80,110
Extracurricular ActiVities 415,594 455,211, 125,617)
General Adminstration 797,044 786,569 10,475,
Facilities Maintenance and Operations 1,139,435 989,175 150,260
Security and Monitoring Services 135,229 101,820 '33,409
Data Procassing Servicas 286,502 230,624 ‘52,218
Community Services 60,793 55,442 5,351
Debt Sérvicé- Interest on Long Terki Debt 391,509 308,135, 83,374
: bebt Service - Bond Issuance Cost and Fees 2,000 76,575 {74,575)
Other Intergovernmental Cherges . 13p12 9051, .. 456%L
Total Expenses 10053188 8,979,568 1,073,620
Change In Net Position 724,026 715,870 -B,156
Net Position < Beginning of Year 1,573,561 -B57,691 715,870
‘Net Posltion = End of Year- 3 2297581 § 1573561 .5 724,026
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Figure 1

Governmental Activities - Revenues by Source
(in dollars)

$9,149,614

8,208,082

$1,627,600 1,487,356

Program Revenues General Revenues

#2021 = 2020

Figure 2

Governmental Activities - Expenses by Source
(in dollars)

510,200,000 $10,053,188

$10,000,000
$9,800,000
$9,600,000
$9,400,000
$9,200,000
$9,000,000
$8,800,000
$8,600,000
$8,400,000

$8,979,568

THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

As the District completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on page 15)
reported a combined fund balance of $3,037,510, which represents an increase of $857,275 over last year's
total of $2,180,235.

The District's General Fund balance of $2,460,031 reported on page 50, differs from the General Fund's
budgetary fund balance of $2,103,553 reported in the budgetary comparison schedule, which is a
difference of $356,478.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

At year end Jurie 30, 9021, the District had about $20 million investéd i in 2 broad range of capjtal assels,
mcludmg Janid, constructton in progress, bitildings, and fumituré & equlpment

"This year’s major additions included:

o 2020,

Larid S 147,793 § 147,793
Buildings and Improvements 22,795,318 23,782,314
Fufniture arid Eqiiipment 2,010,865 1,987,033
Totals at Historical Gosts 24,962,976 24,917,140
.Accurnulated Depteciation _(8197,653) | (7,562,288)
"Total.Capiital Asséts (Net) s 16765323 3 17,354,852,

g

Wiore detailed information. zbout the District's capital assets is preentéd in Noté D (page'30) to thé
financial statenients.

Debt

w'vh:ch had a net decrease ﬁ‘om thie pnm: yeat balance of $12 523, 175 3

More detailed information about the District's long-term liabilities is presented in Note.G (page 31yto the
Finaicial sta‘tementsﬁ

ECGONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES
Budget

Property Values were, esfimated as TIB3 86"’ legislature amended Section 48:256, 'Education Code, for
sing the éiirrerit, rather than preceditig taxable value of property in calcu!afmg 2 district's local shage of
ihe FSP. This change applies to’ all FSP local ‘share calcalations including thase for the Instructional
Facilities Alfotingnt (IFA) and Existing Debt Allotment (EDA) under Chapter 46, Edwcation Code, Plaris
wére made to adjust the praperty valile based it TEAs mterpretahnn of HB3.and County Certified Tax.
;Appralsal values., The prehm:nary adjusted freeze taxable value used for the 2021-2022 budget incréased
9% 16 $121 697,032 from $110, 353, 969 in the previous year.

Student efiroliment and ADA wére budgeted fo remain Tiat.at 600 and 553, respettively, due t0-CGOVIDIO
unpredictability,




The folléwing indicators were takeén int6 consideration in déveloping the géneral operating fimd birdget
for FY 2021-2022: | :

»  District staff totaled 116 employees in 2021-2022, of which 50.are feachers and 39 are teacher
aides; sectetaries and clerks; ) .

e For2021-2022 the Board of Trustees apptoved a $ 1,000 end of year stipend; and, a $1000 end of
year stipend for all paraprofessicaals, auxiliary and administrafive staff; )

* For2021-2022 the Board of Trustees approved .an iucyease in the emfilpyéf health coritribution
rate 6f$32 ificreasing the annual rate per employee 10 $5;148 Trom $4,764;

" s The District maintains three (3) camptises for student instructior;

e State Aide will remain as approved by HB3; .

e  Chapter313 Agreement with Tera-Gen, LLC is ongoing: a line-item was addéd to reflect révenue
of 57K for FY 2021-2022:

Staiidard & Pooks Ratirig ‘ .
The Distriet®s 2020 rating with Staadard and Pobrs fémains A,

Taxes

#  The tax rate for Maintenance atrd Operations (M&0) for FY 2021-2022 is $1.0187.and 54290 for
Interest and Sinking fora tofal tax rate of $1.4477.

s The pgejfiminagy adjusted freéeze taxable: value used for the 2021-2022 budget increased 9% fo
$121,607,032-from"$110,353,969 i the previous year. The Hidalgo Courity: Appraisal District
feviews and assesses property values based o the local real estate farket Within ithe District’s
geographical taxing jurisd iction.

Facilities

The Dj'étrif:i cor?x‘p'let;d the ;E‘nc"rgy‘ G_t_')n_s'qrvqtion project in FY 2020-2021, the FY 2Q25-20'22 budget
includes a line item for payment to SECO i1 the amount of $13,559,

CQOVID-19

The fiill extent of the operational and finncial mpact the COVID-19 pandemi¢ may havé on thé

District is-dependent on its -dusation and spread as well as any related operational Téstrictions and the
overall economy. Other than adjusting for enroljment and taxable value growth, there were no attempts
made to estimate financial inipacts ot assumptions of legislative fiinding cirfs.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provi'de our-citizens, {akpayers, customers; and fnyt_;’stofs and credi't“gjrs
with a general overview of the District's finances and to show thé District's accountability for the money
it receives, If yoil have gitestions about this report or need additional financial informiation, confact the
District's business office, at La Villa Independent School District, # O Box 10, La Villa, Texas, 78588,
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT EXHIBIT A-
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2021
Data Brimidry Gavernmenf
Cuitrol Governmeritial
Codes Adtivitles
ASSETS
1110 Cash, and Cash Cquivalents 3 1831310
1226 Prapcrty’faxcs Delinquent 236,108
I23ﬁ Allowancg for Uncollectible. Taxes {23, 620)
{240 'Dué from Oiher Governments 1:754,881
1267 Due from Fiducigry.Funds ‘773;95?'_
1410  Prepaymenls 26:426
Capital Asseis: o
1510 Land 147,793
152& Bulidu]gs. Nét: 16,326,824
1530 ‘Fumiture andiEquipment, Net .. 290,706
1000 Total Assety 21,366:484
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF-RESOURGES. )
1701 Deférréd -Chiarge Tor Refunding 70,382
1705 Deferred Omﬂmv*Re.iatcd to TRS Pension 1,154,083
1706 'Deférred Ouiflaw Relaied to TRS-OPEB 824,502
1700 Tolal Deferred Cuiflows of Resvirces 2;049,4_({?
LIABILITIES o
2110  Accounts Payable 23518
2140 interest T’ayablc 14},5;0.14
2160  Accrued Wages Payable. 268,249’
2177 Due to Fiduciary Funds 773,31 7
2584 ‘Dueto Othier Gévernmdnts 76 814
2190 Dueto. Studet Groups 1877
3200 Accruéd Expepses 7100
Noncurrent Liabilities:
2501 Due‘Wlthm One Year; Loans. tote. Leases: ete: 657.823
‘ Due in.More than One Year: .
2502 Borids. Note§, Leases. efc, 11.283375
2540 Net Peasion Lishility (Dtstrln.i's Share) 2,507,615
2545 Ner OPER Ltablli;y (Distriet's Sharg) 2.446,509'
2000 Total Ligbilities 18,391,411
PEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - i
2605 Déferred Ififfow Relatéd to TRS Pensidn. 546.025
2606 Deferred Inflaw Related to TRS OPER 27180, 927
=‘.?.6£10 Tolal Deferred Inflows ol Résources . -.?25;952,
NETPOSITION
3200 Net lnvestment in Capital Asséts 4,895,004
Redtricted: )
3820  Restricted for Federal and Stote Programs 15:421
3850  Rostricted for Debt Service 615,042
3900 ‘Unrestricted (3.277, SSDJ
3000 iTotal Net Pasition S 2297 531

The notes 10 the finandial statemerits. are.an Tnregral part of this statgtment,
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TA VILLA INDEPI;NDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMEN‘I‘ OF AGTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2021

EXHIBIT B-]

Net (Expenga)
Revends and
’Cl:anges inMer
Dam ‘Prograni-Reventdes I’osmau
Coritrol’ ' 2 4 ) '.G«
Codes , Operating Primaty Gov,
) Charges Tor “Girants and Governmemal
i X Efpizises Services Contibutiony Activities
}Pll'i;ﬂﬂry Guﬁféi‘l;ment: h - -t o o
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES;
1L Instruction §  43uz9 § 33% § 639305 §  +(3,801,538)
12 nstructions! Resairces and Media Services 198,524 - - (148;525)
13 Curricilum and Istructfonal Statl Davéiopment 457,863 - 298,223 (139,540)
23 Séhool Lendeiship 554,029 - 435 (553.594)
3L Guidance, Conscling, grid Eyaluatior Services 303763, £ 185 (303,578}
33 Health Services 142,531 - 11,443 (131,038)
3 Swdent (Pupil) Transporition, 73,360 - - (73,360)
35 Food Services 582,780 016 549,669 (2,930}
36 Exlracurriculnrt\chwtlw 429,594 %82 s 420,712}
41 General Administraticn: 797043 - 14,868 {782,178)
5T Failities Mainterance and Operations Li39d35 - - (1,i39,435)
52 Seeurity and Mommnrlg,Servm;& 135224 - 24395 (120834
33 Data Processing Services: Aps 502 - - {286,502)
61 Community Services 60,783 + 48,640 {14,153}
72 Debt'Seryice = Intérest én Long-Term Debt 35,509 - - {391,509)
‘73 Debt Service=Bond fssuance Costanid Fées 2000 - & (2.000)
99 'Ofher Intergoverninental. Chatges. 13.612 - - 13,6123
[TP] TQTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT: g l00siass g BAD ¢ 1.545,181 18.425,588)
Dota S o !
Control  Gogeral Révenues:
Cotes Taxesy N
M ?mpeny’l‘axcs, Levicd fof. GeRefal Purposes 1431864
T Property Taxes, Leyied. for Debt. Service 482295
ac ‘Grants end Contribitions not Resiricled 783,755
B Investment Bdmings: 472
Ml “Miscellaneois Local and Tntermediate Revenuc -y
TR Total General Revefiues 5,149,674
N Charige jn Net Position 724,026
NB Nt Position - Beginling 1,573,361
NE' NetPosition = Ending 5 2297587

‘The notes'ta the financlal statemenis are-an integral part of this statement:
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| -
‘ LAVILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
| BA].:ANCE SHEET
| GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
Dawa 10 2H 266
“Conirl Gengeral ESEALA, ESSER-Schioal
Crdés. ‘ xFirriﬁ Improv Basic: Emerg Relief
ASSETS .
£110 ‘Cashand Cash Equivalents ¥ 607,689 § 67,086 & 262,259
{220 Property Taxes - Delinquent _ 190,057 - -
1230 Allowanice for Ungollectible Takes (19;006) -
i240 Due fromi OIher Governments 950 569 362 807 17494
1260 Die froni Other Funds 1,977 947 86 099 =
1410 Prepayments 26, 426 & <
1000, Total Assets 3 ‘a3,743,¢31 $ 505902 § 330,753
LIABILITIES “ “ '
2110 Accounts Payablé. $ 85.382 § b -
2160 Acerued Wages Payable 253,852 4 QSI =
2170 Dietd OtherF unds 760 ,I’ZT 510, 04'? 339 753,
2180 Duyg 16 'Other Guvernménts. 7443 447 -
2190 ‘Dueld Student Groups - - -
2200 .Accrtied Expenditurés 5,246 551 -
2000 “Total Liabilities 1,112,600 515,997 335,753
DEFERRED INFLOWS.OF RESOURCES -
2601 Unavailable Revenue:- ‘Propertyf’['axw . 171,051 - 3
2600 ‘Total Déferred Inflows of Resoiirces _ 171,051 - .
FUND BALANCES
__ Restrieted Fud Balance:
3450 Fédefal or State Funds Grant Restriction - - -
3480  Retirement of’ Ltmgf[‘ erm Debt - - -
3600 Unassugned Fund Balarice 2,460,031 - -
3000 Total Fund Balinges 2,460,031 - :
4000 “Total Liabilities, Deferred Iiflows & Fund Balances $ 3783632 8 515992 § ‘339,753

“The fictes fo the-financial statements:are.an intégral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-|

)] ~Totd
‘Deht Sem’w “Other ‘Govemmental
Find ~ Funds ‘Funds

500,21, 303,645 1,831319
46,141 x 336,198
(4,614) o=  (23,620)

e 354,011 1,754,881
24321 270815 2,359,182
E z _ 26426

656,560 5 '928390. 5 6,184,386

$ 1376348 223516

- 9.446 268,249
- 746,765 2,356,742
- 68,928 76814
- 1:877 1,877

1,303 7,100

- 965,953 2933208

41,527 - 212,578

41,527 - 212,578,

y 15421 15,421
615,042 = 615,042
- . (52,984) 2,407,047

615,042. (37,563  3,037.5i0

636,569 § 928390 5 6,184,386

{




LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT EXHIBIT C-2
, RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE'SHEET TO THE
| STATEMENT-OFNET POSITION
| JUNE30,202)

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Fuids 5 3037510

t The Disttict uses intefnal service finds to chargé the costs of certain actlwhes, such ds self~ -
insurance and prmtmg, 1o appropriate functions ip other fumis The assets-and Jiabilities of
the internal service finds are inéluded in govemmenial agtivities ini.the stitemert. of nét
positior. Thenet effect” Fthis consolidation is to increase net pos;fmn

2. Capital assets-used in govemmental activities- are not ﬁnanc1a1 resobrces and therefore are not 4:757,089
reported in governmental funds. Atthe begmnmg of the yeat, ithe cost of these assets was
$22,769,347 and the accimulated depreclatmn was, ($7 562 289} In addltlon, long-term
liabilities, including bonds payable, are nof dus and.payabie in the current perlod and,
thérefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The-net effect of including the: beégirning
balances for capital assets (net of depreciation) and long-term debtin the governmenteﬂ
getivities Is to decrease net position. Note: Beginning Balances refated to TRS are NOT
mcluded in this amoinit.

3 Current yeat capita! outlays and long:term debt prmcmal paymentsate expenditures inthe 8,518
fund Financial stafements; but théy-should be shown as increases in caplta! assets and ’
reductmns in long-tenn debt in the govemment-mde finaficial statam ents. Thenet éffect of
iicludinig the 2021 cap:tal ouﬂays and ‘debt principal payments i§ to décredse net. position.

4 Iricluded in the ittms related do debt isthe recoghition ot the: District's:proponioniate share of (1,_899,5§7j
the nét position liablify requiréd by GASB 68. Themet. positiofi related to TRS mc]uded a
dafem& résource outflow in the amount'of $1,154,083, a deferred resource, inflow i the
amount of $346,025, and et pension liability in the amount of; $2 ,507,615. This réslted id
At inctease (decrédse) in net position.

§ Included in the items related to débt is the recoghition of the’ District's propnrttonate share of (3;802,934)
the netOPER liability requ:red by GASB 75. The net position related 10" TRSdncluded a
deferred resoutce outflow in the amdunt of $824,502, a deférted resource inflow in’ ithe
amount of $2, 180 927, and a net OPEB llab:hty in the amount of $2,446,509. “This resulted i in
an increase (decrease) in‘net position:

-6 The2020 deprecnatmn experise’increases accuinulated deprecigtion. The neteffect of the (635,365)
current yéar's depreciation is to decreasenet position. '

7 Various otlier reclassifications and eliininations are necessary to-convert from the modified 837,426
accrua[ basis of'accotnting o acerital basis ofaccounting. These include recogmzmg ‘
unavailable févenie from property taxe§-as reveriug, reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales
asan in¢rease-in bonds payable, and recognizing the. liabilities associated with maturing Iong—

term debt and‘interest. ‘The net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is o increase
netpasmoq

is Net Position of Governmental ‘Activities $ 2267 587

The:nétes 1d'the financial statements/are arf integyal part,of this statement.
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND'BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR'THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Tata

2 10 211 266
«Contol ‘General ESEALA ESSER-Sehdo!
Codss ) 7 Pupd. Imiprov Basié ‘Eniériz Reliel

REVENUES: '
5700 Total Local aid Inteimediate Sourgts 5 1:307.008 - & -
5800 Staie Program Revenues 6,176,378 L R
5900 Federal Program Revemies: 523489 375630 98453
5020 Total Revenes 8606875 375630 98453
EXPENDITURES; '
Larrent:
o6l T ]nstm::imn 3262733 150,643 98433
012 ‘Instriictional Resources-and Media Services 179,833 : -
G013 Curriculiim and Instructionsl Staff Bevelopient 116,977 185.751 -
g02i  Schdol Leadetship A96,102. 435 -
03] Guidance, Cotnseling. and Evalustion Sefyices. 274051 60 .
0033 Healih Services 1)7.029 11443 w
0034 Suident (Pupil) Transportation 49.521 - .
0035 Food Services 510,743 : -
0036 Fxlraa:mcﬂarActMtics 379,106 - -
041 General Admlmslratiun 698,913 - -
bos1  Facilities Majritenarice snd OpErations 1,086,309 - -
tos2  Security and Moniitering Services 105, 546 - -
oos3  Data Processing Services 380.565 = i
0041  Community Sérvices 52N 27,298 =
Dbt Seéviee:
0071 Principal on Long-Term Debt 134, 54 s -
0072 Interéston ng-Tem Debt 04,331 » s
0073 Bond Issuance Cost and Fees 000 - -
Interpovernmental: )
gogs  Gther Intergovernmental Charges .16 I -
8030 Toial Expenditutes 7751573 575630 98453
1100 Extess (Deficiency)-of Revenues Over (Undcr) 249,302 . _
Expendifures — e
OTHER FINANCING SOLIRCES (USES):
7ots TrensfefsIn - - -
8911 ‘Trans}e:rs Qut (Use) (28,340} - _ e
7080 Total Othier Financlng Sources (Uses) T (28.3d0) e .
| 1200 Net Changc in Fund Balances ‘826.;1@ - -
o106 Fund Bilage < Jily 1 (Beginniog) 1:639:269 " -
agiog Fuiid Balande - June 30 (Ending) § 2460031 § -~ 8 -

The nétes to the finantial statements are an integral patt of this statement.
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"5 Tatal

Debf Sevics Otlier Governmental
Fund Funds Fods
s 40078 25535 1799639
262,070 B4,518 7,132,966
- 464.338 1461910
752,148 561409 “10,394515
- 390,209 3,902,038
- 129,833

- 112472 415,200

- : 496,537

= 125 274,234

+ - 128,472

< . 49,521

“ - 510,743

- - 379,106

- 4,866 713,779

- - 1,086,309

- 24.395 129,941

- - ‘280,965,

- 19.342 51,911
415:000. - 549,541
329,175 - 423,496
- 2,000

= - 13,612
744,175 561,409 9,537,240
7,973 - 857,275
28,540 - 28,540
= = {28,540)
28,540 = -
36,513, - 857,275
578,529 (37,563) 2,180235
$ 615,042 § (37.563)5 3,037,510

| S
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT EXHIBIT C-4
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
i AND-CHANGES [N EUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
i o FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021 i

‘Total Net Change in Fund Balances = quernmenia! Funds 5 857275

The Dtstrlct uses.internal servicé funds 1o charge the costsiof certain’ activities, such as self- -
insutance-and prmtm . to.appropriate ﬁmchons i other funds.. The netmcome (loss) ofinternal

service funds are reported with governmental activities, The'net effect: of this consolidation-iso.

mcrease net posﬁlon

Cumrent year: capltal:outlays and Jang-term debt prmczpal payments are expend:tures i the: ﬁlnd 8.518
financial statéinents; blit they shotild be shown dsincreases in capital assets and reductions in long-

ferim debt ‘in the govemment-wide. fi nanclal statements. 'I’he nét effect of temoving the 2021 capital

outlays and debt principal paymenis is to. decregse net position,

Depreciation Is not recogiiized as an expense in governmental funds since:it does not t require the use (635:365).
of current financial resources. The net effect.of the curfént year's deprematwn‘ls 1o décrease net ‘
pos:tmn

‘Varlous othérféclassifications and eliminafions aré necessary to tonvert from the madified acenial 870,042

basis of accounting to accrial basis afaccountmg These include recogmzmgunava:iabie revenye
from propeity’ taxes as revenue, adjusting currént year revénus to. showihe Ievenuie eatned fiom the
«clirrent year's tax Jevy, rec!assdizmg the pruceads of bond: sales, and recogmzmg the habnhtles
-associated w:tﬁ maturing long-term" 'debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and
recogmnons is to decrease siet position.

GASB 68 required that cetiain plin expenditures be de-ekpended and recorded as deferred resoriice 577,(‘)18
outflows, These contributions made zfter the-measurement date of the plan caused the change in ’
ending net‘pomtmn to increase by’ $166:007. Contributions made béfore the measurementdate and

drumgthe previons fiscal year were also:expended dnd recorded as a reduction in riet pension

habxhty. This caused a deérease in et posifion 1o[atlmg $147,251. Fmally, the proport:onate sharg

of the TRS pension expense ori the plan as a whole had to'be recorded The net pension expense

decreased the change in net posni:on by ($358 ,262). The net result inan increase (decreasé) in'the

change in net position.

GASB 75 required'that certain plan expendifures be de-expended and recorded as déferred résotirce (753,462)
| outflows; These contnbutmns made-after the measureiment date of the plan caosed the change in
| endmg et posmon to increase by $81,623. Contributions made before the measurement date and
' -during the previous fiscal year were'also expended and récorded, as-a reduction in net pension

hablhty This caused a decrease in net poistion totalmg $80, 493. Finally, the proportionate share of

the TRS pension éxpense of the plan as awhole had to bé recorded Théniet OPEB éxpense

(increased ) decreéased the thange in pet posmon by $754; ;5915 ‘The nét resultis an increase

(decrease} in the change in net position.

Change-in Net Position of Governmental Activities. § 724,026

The ndtés 10 the Fnancial statéments.dre an integral part-ofithis stafement.
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. L, .y EXHIBIT E-1
LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT T
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 202i
Total
Custodial
_ Funds.
ASSETS o
‘Cash and Casti Equiyalent§ 5 55296
Due from Othier Funds 5610
Other Receivables _ ey
Total Assets 63,523
LIABILITIES
Due to.Other Fiinds 8,050
Due to'Stutlent Grotips 55,473
Tota) Liabilities 63,523

Thinotes o the financial staterients are an integrél fart of this stilément,
2]




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Stafements
For the. Year Ended June:30, 2021

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial staténients of La Villa Indepéndent School District (the *District”) have. been

prepared in conforriity with accounting principles, generally-accepted in the United States of Anterica
(*GAAP™y -applicabls to governnierital iinits il Corjunction with theé. Texas Education Ageéricy’s
Finiincial Accotintability System Resotirce Griide (“Resource Guide"), The Govemniental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASBY) is the accepled standard setting body for éstablishing goyermincntal
‘adconinting and financial reporting prificiples: * ’

Pensions. The fiduciary net position of the Tedchér Retirerment Systemy of Texas (TRS).has been
determined using ‘the flow of economic resources measurement }-QE“.?‘ and firll ‘acérual basis of
accounting. Thi§ includes for putposes of méasuring tﬁg net pension Tiability; defermed gutflows of

resoiirees and déferred inflows of réscurces related to pensions; pefsion expense, and inforination aboit
assels, liabilities and additions to/dedictions from TRS’s fiduciary net position; Benefit paymients.
(including refiinds ofémployes contributions) are Técognized when due andpayabledn accordance with
the benefit tetins. Trivestmients dre reported 4t fair value,

Otkier posi-Employnient Berigfits. ‘The Tiduciary net position- of the Teacher Retirement System of
Texas (FRS) TRS Care Plan has been determined. using the flow of economic resources measurement
fdcus and fifll accrual basis of‘accounting. ‘This includes fof: purposes of sneasuiing ibe net OPEB
liability, deferred gutflows of resoirces and deferréd_inflows of resources related to other post-
employment bencfits, 'OPER expénse, and information .about ‘asséfs, liabilities and additions-
foldeductionsfrom TR Cate’s fiduciary niet position. Befefit payments-are recogrized whién dué and
payable in accordarice with the benefit termis. There are nio,investments as'this is.a,pay-as,you-go plan
and all-¢ash is'held ixi a-cash account. R

The District applied Govemnmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement N6, 72, Fair Value
Mesuieinent and Appliéation. GASB Statement No. 72 provides guidance for determininga fair value
smeasurement for teporting purposes and -applying fair value to cerfain investments and disclosures
relited to all fair value meastiremeénts, o

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Thé Board of School Trustees (“Board™), a Sevéi-metmnber group, has'governance fesponsibilities-over
all activities refafed to public elémentary and seconddty education within the jurisdiction of the District.
“The Board is elected:by the publicand has the exclusive power and duty {dgggfifem and oversee the
‘managéaieat 6Fthe piiblic schools of the District. All poweis and dutiésnot specifically delegated by
statuteto the/Texas Education Agency (“TEA™) orto the State Board of Education arg réserved for the
Board, and the TEA. ray not substitute its judgmet for the lawful exercise of those powers and duties
by the Board: The Distict receives funding from local, state and federal government sources and must
comply with 1hé requirements cf':més§'=ﬁx_ﬁﬂing, éntities. However, the District is nét included in any
‘other govemmental “reporting entity” as defined by the GASB in ifs Statemem No. 14, *“The Fitiaiicial
Reporting Entity” and there are no component nifs included within the reporting entity,




LAVILLA INDEPENDENT- SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes tothe Financial Statements
For the Yéar Ended June’ 30, 2021

2i BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

as

Basis of Presentation

Govermnment-widé Financial Statements: ‘The staténiént of net assefs and the- statément of
activities. iriclude the ﬁnanma] activities of the overall goveriiment, except for fi diicidry
activities, Eliniinationshave been madeto minimize the double-counting of mtema]. activities.

Govemmental act:v:t:es génerally are financed throtigh taxes; intérgovenimental- révenues, and

othéF nonéxchange trarsactions.

The $tatement of activities _presents & comparison between idirect expenses and pfogram
revenues. for edch function of the Districts governmental activities, Direct expenses are those
that are:! specnf' ically associated with a progiani of. fitiiction.and, therefore, are c]eaﬂy Ldentlﬁab]e
to-& particular function. The District does not dllocate indirect: expenses in the ‘stateément of
activities, Program revénues include (a) fees, Finésand. charges pmd by the récipiéfits of goods
ot services offered by the prograis and (b) grénts and contiibutions thatatetestrictéd to meeting
the: operational or capital reéquirements of 2 parncular program. Revenues that are not classified

as program reveres, including all taxes, are presénted as general revenies.

Fund Financial Statemients; The fund finanicial statements provide information about the
District’s funds, with separate statemerits presented fo; #ath fimd categpw The emphasis of
fund ﬁnancml statements is on major governmental fiunds, each drsplayed in.a separate column:
All remaining governmental fitnds are.aggregated and xeported as monmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for sérvices; Tesulf from exchiange
iransactions associated with the- prmcn,pa] actumy of the frd. Exchange transactions aré thoge
in which éach party receives and glves up essentially-equal values, Nonoperating révennes, suih
as subsidies and investment earnings; result from noneﬁchange ‘Transactions or- ancillary
activities.

The District reportsthe following inajor govérminiental funds:
General Fund: This-is the District’s Priniary opérating fand, It actounts for all financial

resources of theDistrict Except those required fo be. acéounted for in ancther fund.

Special Revenueé Funds: ESEA Title T, Pait A — Imprnvmg Basic Programs and
Elementary and Secondary Schoel Emergency "Relief: The District accounts for resources
réstricted to; or designated for, specific purposes by thie Dastnct or & grantor ina special revenue
fund.

Debt Service Funds: The District accounts'for resources accumulated and payments made for
pnncxpal and interest on Iong-tenn general obiligation debt of governmental funds in a debt
service fund.
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A&diﬁbng‘ill_y_, the biSlri:::t_ reports the ﬁil@wing‘.ﬂmﬂ.tygefé):

Capital Projects Fund: The proceéds from long:term debt financing and revenues giid eipenditres
relatedl 10 auihorized, construction. and other capital asset dequisitions are decointed for in & capital
projécts fund.

Othey’ Special Revenue Funds: The District sccounts far resources restficted to, or desigriated for,
specific purposes by the Diswictiora grantor in o special revenue fund. Most Federal and some. State
Tiriancial assistancé 1§ accownted for ina Special Révenue Fund, and sometiries urised balances milist be

fetimed to the granfor at the clasé of spécified pigject periads.

Ineinal Service Fundsi These are used to abcount for revenues afid expenses related {o services pravided
to parties inside the. District. ‘Theke finds facilitate distribition of support costs ta the ysers of support
setvices ona cost-reimbuisement basis. Because the principal users. of the inteinal services afe the:
Pis}tﬁct"g; igovernental activities, this find type is included in the 4Govemnmental Activities” colufin of

the government-wide. financial statements.
Fiduciary Funds:

Private-Purpose Trust Funds: These fund$are used fo report tnist arrangements wider which principal
Income benefit individuals, private organizations, or .other govémments not reporied th other fiduciaty
fund typés. ‘ '

Gustodial Funds; The Distfict accoiifits for resourees héld Tor othets in a custodial capacity in custodial

funds, These Rindsre uséd to accourit for asses held by the District as 2l ageit for student-and dther
Grganizations. These funds were previously reported in anagency fund.

This éhange resiilied in répoiting the detail of additions to and dedictions fror custodial funds cavsing.
achange in the fund net position yhereas these details were not reported for agency funds. This change
is a result of the.implementation of GASB 84, The District’s Custodial Funds are the Ta Office Fund,

‘Payroll Clearing Furd, -arid thie. Stident: Activity Funds. These fiinds'did not vequire afi Statement of
Chanpes Fiducidry: Fund-Net Position (ExHibit E-2).

Messurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statemenis: These financial staterients are
tepoitéd using the Bconomic resourtes measurement focus. The povémment-wide and proprietéry #iind
financial stalements are reported. usingthe accrual basis ofaccounting: Revenues are rtecorded wheh
earned and expenses are recorder-at the time liabilities are incurréd, regardless of when thie related cash
flows tike place, Nonexchange transactionss, in ‘which thé District gives (ar fecéives) value. without
directly. raceiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property takes, graiis, entitlentents, and
donations: ‘Onan Aéciual basis, revénue from property taxes is recognized in thie fiscal year in which all
eligibilily requirements have been Satished. - ’

Governmerital Fund Financial Staterentsz Govermmental fuindls are reported usifig the curent fifancial
fesourtes measurgment focis and the migdified accrual basis of dccobifiting. Under this fitethod, feventies
are recognized when measurable and available. “The District does not consider revenues collected after
its year-end to be ayailable in the current pefiod. Revenues from Jocal sources consist primarily of
property taxes. Property tax reventies and revenues received from the State are recognized under the
susceptible-to-acenual concept. ‘Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when recéived-in cash

because they are generally notmeasurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as

eamed, sirice:they are both measurable.and available, Expenditures are recorded when the related fund

ligbility i incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims-and judgments,
and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures 10 the.extent they have matured.
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Géneral capital asset acquisitions:are reported as exp’ap&it_m'cs in govemmental funds, Proceeds
of general iong-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources. )

When the District ‘iricurs an expenditure or'expense foF which both restricted and unresiicted
resources may be used, 3t is fhe District’s policy 16 use unrestricted resources fivst, then restricted
resonrces,

Under GASB Statement No.20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary funds and
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” all proprictary fuiids will

continue to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board (*FASB™) standards issued on -or
before' November 30, 1989, Howieve, from thet date forward, proprietaryfinds will have the
option of either 1) choosing not to apply future FASB standards (incliding amendments of
earliet pronouncements), -of 2) continusé fo follow new FASB prondiincéments unless they
conflict with GASH jguidance: ‘The District has chosen to apply future FASBE standards.

3: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AMOUNTS
a. Chashanil Cash Equivalents

For purpose 6f the statement of cash flows for proprigtary and similar fund-types, the District Gonsiders
highly liquid ‘investinénts to bé cash equivalents if.they have a-maturity of theee morniths or less when
purchased.

b. Propeiiy Taxes

Property taxes are levigd by October 1 on the assessed value listéd a§ of fhié prior January 1 for all rgal
and business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. ‘Taxes are due
on receipt of the tax bill and are dglinquent if not'paid before Februdry 1 of the yearfollowing the year
in which imposed. ‘On January 1 of each year; a tax lien attachés 16 property 6 sécore the payment of
all tax¢s, penalties; and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revennes are consideréd available
when they betome-due orpast due and receivable-withinthe cirrent period.

Genéral  Debt Séenvice

o ) ‘Fund Fund Total

Delinquent Taxes $190,057 $ 46,141 $235,198

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes __ (19,006) (4.614) (23,620)
Net Taxes $171,051 $ 41527  5212,578

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Finds are based upon
historicsl expevience in collecting property taxes, Uncollectible personal property taxes are
periodically reviewed and written off; but the District i prohibited from 'writin g off real property taxés

without specific statutory-authority from thie Texis Legislature.

c. Inventoiies and Prepaid ltems
The District records purchases of supplies as expenditures, utilizing the piifchage fiiethod of accounting

for -inventory in accordance ‘with the Resource Guide, Certain Payments to vendors. reflect cosls
applicable fo future actounting periods and are récorded as prepaid items,
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d. Capital Assets

“Purchidsed or constructed capital assets-are reported at cost or gstimated historical cost. Donated'fixed

asséls are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the dopation, The éost of normal
mairitehance and repaits that do'riot add fo the value of the asset or matenally extend assets’ lives.are
nét éapitalized. A capitalization threshiold of $5,000 is iséd.

Caipital assets are being depreciatéd using the straight-line method gver the Tollowing éstimated usefirl
lives: T ‘ '

Estiinated
Asset Clasg Useful Lives
Buildings, 2040
Building Tmprovements 20-40
“Vehicles ‘8:10
Office’ Eqmpment 515
Computer Equzpment 5-10

-2, Receivablie and Pavahle Balances

TheDlsmct bélieves that suffisient detail pfrecaivablé and payablel balanes 18 provided 1 the' finaneial
statomcnls lo avo:d ﬂm ,obscurmg of: sxgmﬁczmt components by aggrcgatxon ’Ihoreforez 1ib disclostire

There aré ho .sig'nifioant- recejvables which are not scheduled for colléction within ofie year.of year end.s

f Interfund Activity

Interfund activity résults from loans, servite provided, réimburséments or “fransfers betveen fandg.
'Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropnate and are subject to al:mmaf:on
upon consolidation Services p;'ovlded deeméd to be at market of near markot rate§; are treited as
‘revenues-and expenditires or expenses. Reiimbursements oocurwhen ong fund incurs & cost; chiirges
the. appropriate ‘benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as reimbursement. Al ‘other interfurid
transaétions are treated ag tansfers, Transfers In and Transfers Out aré netfed-and presefited ds a sifigle
“Transfers” line on the govemment—wxde statement of #ctivities. Similarly, mterﬁmdrecewables and
payables are Tistted and presented as a-single “Internal Balances™ Liné: of the goveriment-wide
statement of net assets..

g. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conform;ty with GAAP requifes the use of management’s
éstimates.

‘h. Data Contrdl Codes
Data Conitrol Codes apjiear in the rows and above the columis of certain financial statements The'TEA

requires the display of these-codes/in theﬁnancfal statements filed with TRA in ordérto.insiira accuracy
ifs building 4 statewide database for pollcy development and fundirig plans.
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i. Fund Balances
Fund balances of the governinental fuinds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balange — represents affiounts that cannot be spent becaiise they are-either not in
spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid, insurance)‘or Iegally required to rémain intact (such as
Tiotes réceivable or prificipdl ofa permaneut ﬁmd)

Restricted Fund Balance — represenfs amounts. that are constrained by external parties; constitutional
provisions of enabling legislation,

Committed Fund Balance — ~ represents amounts that van only-be uséd for a specific purposé because af
a formal action ‘by the District’s goVerning board. Commltted amounts cannot be ised for any Other
purpose unless the governing board removes those constrairits by taking the same type of formal achon

Cnmmltteﬁ fund balange amounts nay bg uséd for other purposes with appropriate due process by the
goveming, board. Commitments.dre typtcallydone through adoption and amendment of the budpet.

Committed fund balancé amouits differ from rastncted balances in‘that the constrairits of their dse do
‘not come from ontside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.

Assigned Fund-Balance —represents amounts.which the District intends t0 usé for a specific purpose,
Jbut-that 36 not meet the criteria to be clissified as, restticted or committéd. Tntent may be stxpulated by
the goveming board or by an official or body to which the gnvemmg board delegates the authonty .
Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed fn 2 special révenue, capital projects, debt service
or permanent fund are ass:gned fof purposés‘in, accordance with the nature of their fund type or- the
find’s pnmary purpose. Assigntients within the general ‘fund conveys that the intended use‘of those
-amounts is for-a specific purpose { that{s narrower than the general purposes of thie District jtself

Unassigned Fund Balance~ represents amounts:which are anconstrained in that they may bé spentfor
any purpose. Only the genetal fund repurts a positive hnass:gned ﬁmd balance. Other govcrnment{ﬂ
funds might report a negatwe balance in this classification because of. overspendmg for. sgecific
purposes for which amoiits Had been restncted tommitted-of assigned.

‘When an expendlture is‘incurred for a purpose for which bioth restricted and unrestricted fund balance
is:available, the District consuiers réstricted funds to tiave been spent first. When an expendlture is.
inciirzéd. for which comm:tted assigned, or un3551gt12d fund halances are availabls, the District
considers amounts ta have been spent first out of committed finds, then assigned funds, and finally
linassigned funds.

j. Pensions

The fiduciary net posmon of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas'(TRS) has been determined using
the flow of economic resources measurément focus and full acérual basis of accounting: Thisincludes
For purposes of measunng the net pension lla’h:hty, deferred outflows of résources and deferred inflows
of resources related ta pensions, pension expense, and information ahont aséets, liabilities and addmons
to/deductions from TRS fi ducmry net position. Benefit paymenits (including refiunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and paysble in accordance with the benefit terms.. [nvestmenis
are repoited at fair valge.
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B. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND AGCOUNTABILITY

1. Finance-Related Legal and Contraciual Provisions

in accordance with GASB Statement N6, 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,” violation
vof firianceé-related legal and- coniractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with-aé¢tions taken
to address such violations: )

Violation Action Takén
Nopé reported Nat dgplicible-

2-Deficii Fand Balance or Fund net Assets of Individual Funds

Fqllowip' gre funds having deficit find balances or fund net assets at year énd, if any, along with
femarks Which addréss such déficits:

Déficit
Fund. Namé Amaount Remarks .
zS{)c_eéia_l" Révenué Fund ($35,098) SthéTﬁgﬁu@ﬁijﬂﬂ Materials
Capital Prajects Fund ($17,886) Capital Projects Fund

3. Budgetary Data

“The Board of Trustees adopts an “appropriated budget" for the Geiicial Fund, Debt Service Fiind,-and

the: Food Service'Fund which is included in the Specidl Revenue Fiinds: ‘The. District is required to
presént thé adopted and final amended budgeted revenues and éxpenditures for-edch of these furds,
The District compares thie final amendéd budget to-actual teévenues and xpenditures. "The General
Fund Budget.report appears in Exhibit'G-1 and the.othier two reporis-are in Exhibit J2 and 33.

The “following procedures are folldwed i establishing the budgetary: daia;reflected,in the gerieral-
purpose financial stafements;

1. Prior to. June 20 the District prepares a budget’rfér the next succeeding fiscal 'year beginning
July 1; ‘The operating budgét jicludés proposed expenditures and the means of finasicing them.

N

A meeting of the Board is then called for the purposé of adopting the proposéd budget. Atleast
téii days puiblic notice of the meeting must be.given. '

3, PrioitoSeptember 1, thebudget is legally énacted through passagéofa resolution By the Board.
Once s budget s approved, it can-only be amended at the flitiction and fiind level by approval
of'a majority of the members of the Board, Amendments.are presented to the Board at it's
regular meetings. Each aferidment must have Board approval. As reguired by latv, Such
amendments are made hefore the fact, are reflecied i the official minutes ofthe Board, and are
not made. after fis¢al year end. Bécause the District has a policy .6f careful budgeétary-contral,
sevéral amendmerits weére necessary during the year:
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B. STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTARILITY {contifiucd)

4. Each ‘budget is controlled by the budget -coordinator at lhe revenue -and &tpénditures
function/object level, Budgsted amounts are as armended by the Board. All budget appropriations
lapsé at year end. A reconciliation of fund balances for. both appropriated budget and
ncfﬂg‘pproprfated budget speéial revenue funds is as follows:

Tune30, 2021
Fund'Balance _
Appropriated Budgét Funds - Food Service Special Reyemie 3 534,458
Fund o
Nonapprgpriated Budget Funds 1,718,107
All Special Revenug Funds § 2,252,565
b

5. Excéss of expenditure over appropridtions

The follawing is 4 list of the exeéss 6F expenditures over appropiiations, at thé legal control by
an individual fund.

Fund Furiction Amount of Bxéess
Gengral Fuind 11~ Instriction (59:711)
Geéneral Fund 33 = Health Services (6,682)
General Fund 72 - Interest on Long Term Deébt (13,502)
Gérneral Fiind “73 = Bond Issuaiice Cost and Fees (2,000)

C: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The District’s,funds are required to be deposited and invested under the térms of a depository éontract.
The depository bank deposits for safekeeping and tritst with the District’s agent bank approved pledged
securities:in an amount sufficient to pr{)\te’ct_«Distri'gt- funds on a'day-to-day basis during the pesiod .of
the contract. The pledge of approved sécurities is waived Guly to the extent 5f the dépository bank’s
dollar'amount of Fedéral Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insuraice. "

1. Cash Deposits:

At June 30, 2021, the carying amount of ‘the: Distriét’s depasits (cash, certificates of deposit, and
interést-bearing savings.accounts included in tempotary investments) was $1,886,615 and the barik
baldnce was $1,944,958. The District’s cash depasits for the yearénded June 30, 2021 arid during the
year ended June 30,2021, were entirely covered by the FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral lield
by the District’s dgeint bank in the District’s naine:
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G, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

2. Investments:

“Ttie Distriétis réquired by Govemmient Code Chapter 2256; The Public Funds [nvestmert Act; to adopt;
implement, and publicize an investihent policy. That policy mustaddress the following areas: (1) safety
.of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowablé; investrients, (4) acceptable fisk
levels;.(5) expéeted rates of return, (6) maximum allgwablé sfated maturity of portfolic investments,

=

(7) maximum ayerage dollarweighted maturity sliowed based on the stated maturity date for the

portfolio, (8) investméit staff quality and <capabilities, 4and (9) bid solicitafion prefefences for
cerfificates of deposit. -

"The’ Public Funds Investmient Act (*Act”) requires an annual -audit of investment practices, Audit
pracedures in this area conducted as a partof thie audit 6f the basic financial Stitements digclosed that
in theareas of investnient practice, mgqaggment‘i‘qijcgt‘s‘aggl:éstabli‘shiﬁen; of appropriate policies; the
District adhered to the requiréments of ihe Act, Additionally, investmient practices of the District were
in accordance with local policies.

THe Act.determines the types of investments which are allGwable for the Distriét, These include, with
certain restrictions, 1) obligations of the U.8, Treasiry,, U.S. -agencies, and the State of Texas, 2)
certificates of deposit; 3) certain fmunicipal sectirities,"4) secorities'lending’program, 5) repurchase
‘agreerfiénts, §) barkers acceptances, 7) mutudl fuids, 8) invéstment pools, 9) guaranteed investment
contracts, and 10) commercial paper. N

Thé District Had no invésfriénts as-of ended June 30,2021

3: Analysis 6f Specific Depositand Tnvestment Risks

GASB Statement no. 40 requires a determination 5.1 whether the District-was exposed to,the
following spécific investment risks at yedr end and if'so, the réporting of certain related disclosures:

. Credit Risk

Crédit ik i the risk that an jSsuer or other Counterparty to an investmiént will ot falfill its
obligations. Theratings of securifies by nationiatly recopnized rating agencies are désigned t0 give.
an indication ofcredit risk. At year end the Disfrict was not significantly exposed to credit risk.

b. Custodial Crédif Risk

Dégosits are exposed 1o éustodial ¢redit risk it they are niot gévéred by dépositary insurance and
ihie deposits are uncollaferalized, collateralized with securities held by ‘the. pledging financial
ingtitutions, -of collateralized with securities held by ‘the pledging financial institution’s trust
department of agent; but 6t in the District's naine: )

Investment secisrities are exposed to tustodial credit risk.iF the-securities are uninsured; are not
régistered in the name of the govemment, and are held by either the tounterparty wr the
cff!ﬁfl,tﬁrba_r,ty’ﬁ trust department or agent but notdn the District’s name. As of June 30, 2021 the
District was ot exposed to custodial credit risk.
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C. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS {contintied)

e. Concentration of Credit Risk

This i the risk that in inferest. rates will advérsely affect the fair value of an investment. As of
June'30, 2021 the District was not exposed to concentration of.credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the tisk that changesin, interest rates wiil adversely affect the fait value of an investment,
As of June 30, 2021 the District was not ¢xposed fo interest raté sk,

e. Foreipn Currency Risk

“This'is the risk that exchange rates will adverselyaffect the fair value of an investment,. Asof June
30, 2021, the:District was not exposed to'foreign ciirericy risk.

Investmént Accounting Policy

The District’s general -policy i§ to report imoney market ivestmérits dnd, short-térm participating
interest-eaming investnent confracts at amorfized cast and to report nonparticipating, interest-earning
investiment. contrdcts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an inveéstmient is
significantly affected by flie impairment of the credit standing ofthe issuer of by bther factors, it i§
réported at fair value. All other investmients. are reported at:fair valueunless.a Jegal contract exists
which guatantcesa higher valug. The term “short-term” refers ta investment’s value does it vary with
market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiahle ceitificates of deposit.are examples of nonparticipating
interest-éarning investment contracts.

Public Funds Inveshpent Pools

Public funds investment-pools in Texas (“Pgols™)are established under the authority of the Interlocal
Cooperation Act, Chapter 79 of the Texas Govemnment:Code, In addition to other provisions of the Act
designed to prométe liquidity ahd Safety.of principal, the Act réquires Paols to? 1) have ani advisory
board composed of participants in the pool and ofher-persons who do not have a business relationship
with the pool and are qualified to advise the pool; 2) maintaini 2 continuous fating of no lower that AAA
or AAA-m oran equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating sérvice; and 3) maintain
the market value.ofits undetlying investment, portfolio within one half'of one percent of the'vatue of
its shares.

‘The District’s investments in Paols are reported at an smount determinéd by the fair value per share of
the pool’s underlying portfolis, unless the pool s 2a7-like, in which case they are réported at shaie
vilue. A 247-like pool is one which.is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
{"SEC”) as an investment company; but nevertheléss has a pdlicy that it Will, and does, operate in a
manner consistent with the SE(E’s Rule.2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.
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D CAPITAL ASSETS

Capj ital asset activity during the year ended June:30, 2021, was as follows:

Capital assets not bising deprectated

tapd 4 14793 § - 8 -~ § 147,793
Cnnstructian I Prngras __ . L. . s
Total capitdl dssets notbeing depreciated 137,793 - - 147,793
Capita] assets beingdepreciated: o L
Buyildings and fmprovements 23,182,336 13,005 = 23,195,341
Furnitureand Equipment: 1;587-;01_:[: 32833 ... A _een..3,618,843
Totals tapltal assets being depréciated ‘247269347 45,837 ° - 24,815,184
less Az::umu[ated Depreciated for: L ) . )
‘Bmldings Fid improvements {6,348,386) (520,131} ~ (6,868,517)
Furnii:ure& Equlpmant ;'(1‘,‘21":‘!&503}\ . {115234Y a: (;,32__;!:13?.)4
Total Acciimulated Depreciation . {7.562.289] {635,365) = (8.1_57.“55‘#}
Totd) capital asse::s being depréclaigd; net L 17,207,058 . {580.528). o —15,‘6:!.?._5305
Govérnmental, Activities capital agsets, fiet $ _17,354,851 S (583,528) S - & 15765323

Dep reciation wis charged 16 functiohs as follows:

fnstcucilon K] 382749

1Astritetional Resources and Media. Services ‘ 10,483

School Leadership 20,967

Guldance, Counseling, & Evaluating Services 10.483

Heaith Sepvices ) 5, 210 .
Swdent [Pupii) Transpartation 22, ’935’ '

Food Services 36,?22

CncurrlcularjExtracurrfcular Activities ‘26 240

General Admlnstratmrl AB, 064

‘Plant Maiftenanie ahd Ogeration 73,511

Total Dépreciation Expende

E. INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES

5 635,365

I. Transfers To and From Otlier Funds/Dué t6 and From Other Funds:

Transférs to and from other funds and dué fo and froni othér funds for the year ended Jime 30,2021,

consisted:-ofthe -fqllowmg:

Fransfers:From'. Transfers To Amaint
General Fund ‘Debt Safvice Fund S 28,540
Towl* s ‘38,540
Dueéfrom . . DueTa _ Amotnt
*Debt Service Fund ‘General Fund 8 28,540
) Total. S 28540
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L:A VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2021
F. FUND BALANCES
The District has nionspendable; restricted, comuiitted, and unassigned fiind balance as follows.
Restricted Fund Balanges; _
Federal or Statg Funds ‘Grant Resiriction 5 15,421
| Retitement of LongTerm.Debi 615,042
Committed Fund Balances
Cénistisction .
Unassigned: 2,407,047
Tota! Fimmd Balagee $ 3,037;5108
G. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
The Dj's"tri:ct has entered into @ continuing disclosure undertaking 16 pxjg\fidg Anriud]l Reports -and
Material Everit Noticés to the. State Information Depository of Texds, which 1§ theMunicipal Advisory
Council. This jnformation is required under SEC Rule 15c2-12i1o enable investors to analyze, the
financial condition and operations of the District;
1.'Long-Term Obligations Activity
Long-term obligations inchide debfand éther long-term liabilitics. .Changes in long-term
Obligitions, during the year ended Juné 30, 2021, are as follows:
bfecsl  Amdunls Tnlerest Ending Dug
Mewiy  Rae Original Corwit  Oitslanding Balance. withia
__Desmiptiin Dite. Pable  _ Isme _ Year . 070H20 Incrézses _  Deciémies. 630202 aneyear
016 Unlimited Tax Refindig Bonds  RASPM37 23003 2060000 72130 1965000 o N0 T LEESM0 850
018 Uninited Tox Reflnding Bonds ~~ WISPH37 24003 7175000 257005 6435000 4 335,000 630000 330,000
2019 Mainlenancs Tax Notes RalR03d  d400% L7280 20 1725000 3300 1,640,000 90,000
SeleBnuy Conervalion Office-— BBY2035  <20% 140,230 35011 1340230 - 19341 1,350,689 85,338
{SECO} Lot Kb c5llatersl ,
Nel Premium/Discount L _ I5146 o <048 - IBS0 41288
Total Long-Term Debt 5 AB4%6 . § 12536 3 - % SO § 1M1 5 657,828
‘Net Pensior Lizbility 2216575 44223 193,183 2,507,615 -
Net OPER Lizbilty 30941 (554,048 48916 246,509 -
“Totd Other Long-Tenm Debt ) - T OTSIBME T (mEny 242099 4,954,124 -
Tatal Governmenta! Activitics 8 483406 S 178492

3 (nsny 8

R4016 5 1689533
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LA VILLAIN DE:PENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Fmancla! Statements
For ﬂlaYear Ended June 30, QO21

2, Débt Service Requirements
Debt sérvice réquiremeénts on long-term debt during the year ended June 30, 2021, -are as Tollaws:

Govemmental Activities:

Year Ending August31, ~ Principal.. Jntérest .. Total,
2022 © 610539 397,703 1,008,242
9023 627,262 375,554 1,002,816
2024 539,021 354;871 893,892
2025 555,815 335,652 391,467
2026 582,645. 315, 637 898,292
‘Theiéafter 8,300,407 2,042,137 10,342,534
Totals 311215689  § 3.821,554 § 15,037.243.

3, Advance Refanding of Debt

“On Decembér 8 2016 thé District issued Series 2016 ‘bonds totaimg $2, 160 000 with iuterest rates
rangmgfrom 2 00% t6'3.00% to advance. reﬁmd$2 170,000 of: Series 2007 Bonds with an mte.rest rate
of 4.00% to 4.50%. Thenet procaeds were uged to pumhase U.S. Government secunttes, which were
deposued iman Jrrevocable trust with ap escrow agent to provide for fuhiré debt service payments on'the
-refimded bonds. As afesult; '$2,170, 1000, of Series 2007 bonds-are considered to be defeased and the
Tiability for those bonds was removed front long-term debt: Asa resultofthe refunding, the cash ﬂoWs
fequired to service the 01d debt amounted to $6,807,681 and the. cash flow to, servicé the new debt will
amount to $6,548,521. The refunding resulfed ina savmgs of $259,160 and a net present value.savmgs
of §10, 000 (or 0 463% of the principal amount-of the Refunded Bonds) which i were used 1o.refund the
Series 2007 bonds and’ 1o pay costs. ofissuance,

! On Febmary 15; 2019 the District. issued Serfes 2019 honds totaling $7,175,000 with interest ratés

| rangmg from 2 00% to 4.00% to advance refund $2,385,000.of Series 2008 Bonds with an jnterest rate

. of 4,00% 16 4.52%. The tiet proceeds were uised to purchase. US. Government secnrities, Wwhich wére
deposited in an irrevocable trust with-an escrow agent to pravide for future debt service paymentsion the
refunded bonds: Asa result, 32,385,000 of Series 2008 bonds, are &onsidered fo be. defeased and the
‘llabillty for those bonds was remo'.red from. lang -terim debt. As atesult 6f the reﬁmdmg, the cash flows
required to service the old debt amounted t0;$13 579 123 and the cash flow {o service the:new debt will
amount to $13,374,667. The,reﬁmdmgresulted in a savings of: $204 456 and a net pregent value loss of
$4,750, 000.(or 0.667% of the ‘principal amotint of the Refunded Bonds) which were used to refund the
Series 2008 bonds and to pay-costs. of issuance.

4.Deferred Charge on Refunding
At the governmient=wide fi nancial statements (Exhibit'A-1), the District reports cumulative nharges ot
refiinding as nét deferred ontflows in the amouiritof $70,882:
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notcs 10 the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June-30, 2021

H. RISK MANAGEMENT

The sttnct*ls exposed to variousrisks6f loss'related-fo'tortsjtheft, damage or-destruction of assets;-
‘errors and omissions, injuries to employees,-and natural disasters, Dunng fiscal year 2{)17 the District
purchased commercial insurdncé to cover general liabilities. Thefe wereno sngmf' cant reductiont in
coverage'in the past year and there were no setflements exceeding insurance coverage for cach 6fihe
past three fisgal years,

L PENSION PLAN OBIIGATIONS
A, Plan Description

“The District participates in a cost-sharing multmle-emp1oyer defined benefit pension theit fias a specsal
fundmg situation, ‘The plan is.administeréd by the Teacher Retirement Sysfem of Texas (TRS), Itisa
defined beneﬁt petision plan is- estabhshed and admmlste.red i accordance withthe Texas Consntutlon,
Artlcle:XVI Sedtion 67 and“Texas Gow:mmen”f Code, “Title 8, Subtitle C. The pensxon trust find {5 2
qualified pensiofn trust under Section 401(z) of the Interial Revenue Code. The Tekas Legas}ature
establishies benefi ts: and contribution rates within the guidelines ofthe Tekas Constitution. The pension’s
Board of Trustees doésnothave the authority-to establish or amend benefit térms.

All employees of public; state-supported educational institutions I Texas who are employed for one-
half of ‘more 8f the standard work, load and who are not exempted from membershlp undar Téxas
Govemment Code; Title 8 Section'822.002 are covered by the system.

B. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed iformation. about the Teachier Retirenient System’s fiduciaty ne- ~position is available i a
separately—lssued Comprehenswe Anmial Finanefal Report that includes financidl statements and
required supplementaty information.  That report’ may be obfainéd on the Intemet at
hitp://wwwtrs state. b:.us/aboutfdocumentsr’caﬁ.pdf#CAFR by writing to TRS at 1000 Red River Strect,
Austin, TX, 78701-2698; or by calling [5 12)'542-6592.

C. Benéfits Provided

TRS jprovides sérvice and disabilify retirement; as well as death and survivor benefi its; to eligible
employees (’aﬂd their beneficiaries)- of - pubhc and higher educatwn in Texas. The pension formula is
caleulated fisiiig 2 23 percent (mu[trpher) times the average of the five highest anhual creditable salaries
times yeais of cred:ted sefvice to arrive at the annual standird annuity except for mam’bers who are
grandﬁathered the' three hlghest annusl salaries are used. The normal service retirement is-at age 65 with
5 years of credited service or when the fum of the membér’s age-and years of credited sérvice equals 80
or more years, Early retirement is at 2 age 55 W1th 5 years of service credit or earlier than 55" Wlﬂ‘l 30 years
of service credit. There are additional provisions for early retifement ifthe sum 6f'the member’s age
and years of service crédit total at least 80, but the member is less than age 60.or 62 depending on date
of emiployment, -or if the. member was grandfathered in under a previous rule. There areno autématic
post-emiploymeént bepéfit changes; in¢luding automatic COLAs. Ad loc pust—employment Benéfit
changes, mcludmg ad hoc ‘COLAs can be granted by the Tekas Legislature as nofed in the Plan,
description in (A) aboye.
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1. PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS {Continued)

LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SC’I:IOOL DISTRICT
Notesto the Financial Statements
Tor the Vear, Ended June 30, 2021

D. Contributions

Cnntnbnnonjreqmrements are establishied or aménded pursuant.to Article. 16, section 67 ‘of the Texas
Constitution which requires the Texas legislature to.establish amember contrlbutlon:axe ofnot Tessthian
‘6% of the nienber’s arinual compensation-anda state contribution. rate of not Jess than 6% and not miore
than 10% of the aggregate annual compensation paid to'members of the- system dunng the yesr.

‘Employee contribution rates are sétifi State statute, Texas Goveriment Code 825 A02. “The TRS Pedision

Réform Bill {Senate Bill 12) of the 86 Texas Legisiature amended Texas Government Code 825.402
for menzlber contributions and mcreased employee and employér c contnbutmn tates for fiscal years 2020 .
thry 2025

Conttibution Rates .

- - 2020 © 2021
Wieérnber 7.70% "7-70%
‘Non-Emplayér Contributing Entity (State} 7.50% 7:50%
Employers 7.50% 7.50%
La Villa 1SD 2021 F_mp!oyer Contribitions S 136, 054
;aVﬂla ] 2021 Membér Contributions b1 389, 639
Ld Vills 1SD 2020 NECE Ori-Behalf Cofitributions, % 271279

Contributorsito the plan include members, employers and the State:0f Téxas as the only- non—employer
contnbutmg entity. The Stateis the employer for seriior-colléges, medical schaols and stafe agencies
mcludlngTRS In eactiTespective role, the State- Cotributes o the plan in decordande With 5tate siatutes
and the General Apptopnataons Act {GAA)

As the nion-eniployeér contributing entity for pubhc education -and jumor colleges, the State.of Texas
contributes 1g the retu'ement system an amount: cqual to the corfent employer contribution rdte fimes'the
aggregate annual compensatmn afall partmxpatmg members of the pension trust fund during thatfiscal
year reduced by the amourits Mescribed belowwhich are. pzud by the employers. Bmployers (pubhc
school, Jumor college other entities or the State of Texas as the employcr for:senior uniyersities and
miedical'schiools) aré.requiired to pay the employer contribiition fate in the following instarices:

Oh the portmn of the member's saldry that exceeds the statutory minifnuni for members entitled to the
statutory minimum under Sectién 21, 402 of the Texas Education Code.

During a new member’s first 90 days of employmcnt

When any part or 21l of an employee’s salary is paid by federal funding sonrces, aprwabaly sponsored
source, from non-educational and general, or logal ﬁmds

When ‘the employmg district is .a public judior college or jimior college district, the employer shall
contribufe: to the retirement. systcm dn amount equal to 50% of the. state contnbunon raté-for ceftain
instructional &r administrativer empldyees; and 100% of the state contribution rate for sall other
amp]oyees
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended June 30,2021

1. PENSIONPLAN OBLIGATIONS (Contintied)

I addition to the employercontributions lsted above, there are ‘two additionl surcharges an employer
is sub_]ect tod

* Al public schools, charter schools; and regxonal educational seryice centers must contribite 1.5 percent
of: the member's salary beginning i in fiséal-year 2020 gradually 1 mcreasmg to 2 pércent in fiscal year
2025,

& When: einploying a retiree of the Teacher Retirement Systéi, the cmployer shall pay 'both the meérnber
confribution and thie state contribution‘as anemployment afier. retirement surcharge.’

E. Actuarial Assamptions

The total pension liability in the August 31, 2019-was détermined using the followiig agtiarial
assumptions: '

August 31, 2019 rélled forward ta

“alndtion Date August31, 2020

Activitial Cost Method Individial Entry Age Normal

Tniflation 2.3%.

Singlée Discount Rate 2:33% as of Angust31,2020°

Aging Factors Based on p]an:spéciﬁ:d experience
‘Norma] Reticenient: 65%
pacticipation priof to age &5 and

Electicn Rates 40% participation afterage65,25%

,uf pre-ﬁs Tetirees.are assumed o
discontinue coverage atage 65

Tbi;d—party aﬁmiﬁisiraﬁya expenses
related 1o the delivery of health care:

Expenses benefits are inchided in the age-
adjusted claims costs.

‘Salary Increases 3,05% to-9.05%, including inflation

Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes ‘None

’i'he actuarial methnﬂs and assump’txons are used jn ﬂlexd‘etenmnanon of’ ﬂle total .pension ligbility are

.....
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o LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
| “Notes to the Financial Statements
Forthe Year Ended Juné 30, 2021

1. PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (Continucd)
¥F. Discount Rate

A single discount fate 6f 725 percént was used 1o measure the total pension lidbility, The sifigle discotnt
r‘afte,, was based on the éxpecied rate of réturn on pension plan investments of 7:25 percent. The projection
of cash flows used to determine theé discount rate assumed that contfibutions ffom active members,
_émployers and the iofi-employer contributing entity will bémade at the rates set by the legislature during
the 2019 session. It is dssumed that future employer and state «contributions, will be, 8.50 percent of
payroll in fiscal year 2020 gradually increasing ter 9.55 pescerit of payroll-aver the next several .years.
Thisfnclides all émiployer and-state éontributions for aétive-and rehired retirees.

Based on those assumptiohs, the pensjon plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make 4l fiture benefit payments of current plan meémbers. Therefore, the long-term expected rafe of
returm on pension plan inyestrients was applied to all periods of projécted Benefitpayments to determine.
the total pension labilify, o ' i

‘The long:term rate of returon, pension plan investments 157.25% The Jong-term expected rate ofrefiirn
‘on. pension ‘plan investments was deténiiined tisirig a building-block method in which biest-estimates.
ranges of expected future’real rates of retimn (éxpected sehirns, net of perision. plan invistmerit expense

and inflation) aré déveloped for eaéh major asset class: These ranges are combined fo produce the long-
‘term expected saté. of refurn by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
alldeation pércentage and by adding éxpected inflation. '

Bést estimates of geonietric redl rites of return Yor each niajor assét €lags included in the Systeims target
asset allocation ds 'of August 31,2019 'dre summarized below:

Expected
. Long-term Contribution to Long-
Target Expected Arithmetic Term Portiolio
Asset:Clagy Allpcation’  -Real Rate of Return’ -Returns .

Global Equity ' ] - L
Us, 18.00% 3:90% i 0.95%
‘Non:U,S. Developed 13:00% 5.10%, 092%
Emergihg Mirkets 9.00% 5.60% 0.83%
Priviite Equity 12.00% 6.70% 141%
'Siablé Value i )
Government Bonds 16:00% HD70% #0.05%
‘Stable Valie Hedge 5.00% 1.90% 0.11%
Real Return

Redl Estate 15.00% 4.66% 1:01%
Erergy and Natiical Résourées -6.0085 6.00% 0.42%
Risk Parity

Risk Parity 8.00% 300% D:30%
Leverage . L i
Cash 2.00% -1.50% =0.03%
Asset Aliocation Leverage ~6.00% ~1.30% 0.08%
Inflation Expéctdtion = 2.00%
Volsiilily Drag® . . 0.67%
“Total 100% 7.33%

{ Target alldcations are based of the FY2020 policy model. ,
2 Capital markcl assumptions:come frond Adn Hewiit (2s of 08/31/2020) )
3 Thik valaiility drag results o the conversion betwesn atithmietic and geometricmean refums.




LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to.the Finaricial Stateménts
For the Year Ended June 30,2021

L PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS {Continued)
G. Discount Rite Seusitivity Analysis

The fdl‘léwi_ng table presénts the Net Pension Liability of the plan using the discount rate 6f7 -25 percént,

and what the net pension’ liability woiild be if it were ‘caJwI};_ted using # discount rate that is ong

percentage point lower (6.25:percent) or one percentage point higher (B:ZS.Q'ert_:p_thhan the current rate,

- i%Deceaseii | " 1% Increasein
DiscountRats |  Discotifit Rate DiscéuritRate |
{6.25%] . {7:25%) {8.25%)
ia Villa's propértionate T g ’ -
share of the'net pehsicn liabllitys 4 3,866,697-] 5. 2,507,615 | & 14063350

H. Pension Liabilitics, Pension Expérise, and Déferred Ontflows of Resources. and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

AtJune 30, 2020, the District reported a Jiability 9f$2,507,615for its proportionate share of the TRS’s
net pension liability: “This liability réflects a reduction for State pension support provided fo'the'District.
The-ambunit recognized by the District as its proportiondie share of the fiet.pension liability, the related
Stite support, and the total portion 6f the et pénsion liability that was associated with the District wire
as follows:

Distfict's Prapéitionate sharé of the collective net pension liability § 2,507,615
State's proportionate share that Is associated with the Distfict . 3,523,345
Fotal, $ 6,028,960

The net pension liability Wwas measired a5 6f August 31, 2019'and rolled forward to Avgust31,2020

; N,

and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension [iability was determined by anacmuarial

valtatioh as of thit date: The emiployer’s proportion of ‘the net pension liability was based on the
eriployer’s contributiors t6 the pension plan rélative to the-contributions of all employersto the plan for
the period September 1, 2019 thrr August 31,2020.

At August 31,2020 the emiployet’s proportion of the collective net pension Habilfty was 0046820582%.
which was an increase (décrease), of .0003026090% from its proportion measired as.of Angust 31,
2019,

Changes Since the Prior Actoarial Valuation
There were no changes i assumiptions since the priof measireniént date,

; n

For the year ended Juné-30, 2021, the District recoguized pension expense of $212,529 and revenué of

$423;540 for'support provided by the State,
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes 16 the Financial Statements
For-the Year Ended Jine 30,2021

L PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS {Continued

At Tune 30, 2021, the District reported its proportionate. share of thé TRS' déferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows.of sésouirces related Yo pensions from'the folloving sources:

1 Deferced fieferfed

.| butflawsof | nflois of
. | .Resources i Resolfces
Differences belweep expected and actual economic experience il$ ~ 4s579|$ _ 69,981
Chiange$in activarial assurhptions. . _ . . . | :581,856| 247,401
Differanté between projected and 3ctual investmerit edrnings ‘ 507651 0 =

Ehanges i proforion and difference betwesn the emplayer's contributions

and the propofiionate share of cortributions e 350,876 528,643 |

“otal.as-August 31, 2020 measurement date, 1 988,076 548,025,
|Cortabutions paid to TRS subsequént ta'the measurément dafe . 166,007 1 Ty
; “Total 35 offiscal year ended, . |8 “1,154,084 | & 586,025,

E]

“Tiie net amonits, of the emiployer’s balances of deférred outtlows and ‘inflows of resourges, relafed to
pedsions will betecognized in pension expense-as follows:

Year erided:ling 30, |PersioivExpense Amotint ., |
073 R . 129,562
2023, 1 152,814"
2024 _ ) 1 __aangjEe

2025 | 46,320
Tad2s ) 1(17,092)

| Thereafter e 5,659

J. DEFINED OTHER jPOS’I'—EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

P A . T ) T i e

A: PldnDescription

The La Villa- Independent $chool District participates in the Texas ‘Public School Retired Employees
Groiip Instrance Program {TRS-Care), It is a multiple-employer; ‘cost:sharing defined Other Post-
Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan that has a special funding situation.. The TRS-Care. program svas
establishéd i 1986'by the Tekas Legislature.

The TRS Bourd of Trusfees admiriisters the TRS-Care program and the related fund in accordance with
"Texas Insurance Codé Chapter 1575, The Board of Trustees is granfed the duthority to establish basic
afid optional groiip instrance coverage for pariicipants as ‘el a5 to amend benefit ierins as needed under
Chapter 1575,052, The Board may adoptrules; pléns, procedures, and prders easonably-nétessary 10
administer the program, including minimum benefits and financing standards, )
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Yeéar Ended June 30, 2021

J; DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

B. OPEB Plan Fiducizry Net Position

Detail.information abairt the TRS-Care’s fiduciaty net position is available ifr the séparately-issued TRS.
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements and requited supplémentary
information,. That teport may ‘be  obtained on  the Interiet  at
fittpe/Rivivwtis:state. b ue/about/dociments/cafr. pA FCAER; by writingtd TRS at 1000 Red River Street,
Austin, TX, 78701-2698; or by-callirig (512) 542:6592; '

C. Benefits Provided

JI‘RS-Qarepm\ri&;s‘ a basic heglth inSuranice coverage (TRS-Care. 1), dtno cost o all retirees from puiblic
schodls, charter schiools, tegional education service centers.and dthér edugational distiicts whe- are
mgimbers of the TRS pension plan: Optibna].dggend_ehtco‘veragﬁ;ius available for ari additional fee.

Eligible retirees and their dependents niot enrolled in Medicare may pay preiniums to-paiticipate in‘one
of two optional insurance plans with mote comprehensive benefits (TRS-Cafe2 and TRS-Care 3),
Eligible retirees and dependents enrolled it Medicate may elect to-parficipaté in dne of the two Medicare
liealth plens for an additional fee: To.qualify for TRS:Care toverage; aTetirée must have at least 10
‘years of service credit in the TRS pension system.. The Board of Tristees is'granted the authority t6
establish basic and optional groiip ingurance coverags for participants as:well as to amend benefit terms
asnieeded urider Chapier 1575.052. There are np aufomaiic postiemploymerit benefif changes; including
aufomatic COLAs.

The premium rates for refirees are réflected in the ?dfldwfhg, table,

TRS-Care Monthly Tor Retirees

Medicare: Non-Medicare
Retifes of Strviving Spouse 3 135§ 200
Retirée and Spouse 529 689
Retites or:Surviving Spouse and Childrén 468 408
Retiree and Family 120 99y

D. Contributiobs

Contribution rates for the TRS-Care plan are established in state statute by the Texas Legislatue, and
there is no continuing obligation to provide benefits beyorid each fiséal year. The TRS-Care plan is
camently funded on # pay-as-you-go basis and is subject to change based on ayailable finding: Funding
for TRS-Care is provided by efiree ‘premiium contributions aid ontributions drom fhe state, active
employees, and school districts based upon public school district payroll. The TRS Board of trustees.
does not have the authority'to setor amend ¢ontribution rates,
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the YearEnded Juie 30, 2021

J. DEFINED OTHER PO

ST-EMPLOVMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continued

“Téxas Insurance Gode, settion 1575.202 establishes the state’s contriblitioirate which 38 1:25 percent
of thé émployee’s salary: Secthn 15-75:203‘~§smb1fsh,es-ﬂle‘acti\iéq~emquye;e~35;. ratg which 1$ £75 percent
of pay. Section 1575.204 establishes an employercontribufion rate of iot-less than 025 percent or'not
more than 0375 percent of ‘the salary of each active employee of the public. “The .dctual employer
contiibution rate ‘is;préscribed by the Legislature in the General Appropriations Act. ‘The following table
shows contributions to the TRS-Care plén by type of corifributor. ‘

Coritribufion Rates

3030, 2021
Active Empldyee 0.65% 0:65%
Nori:Employer Confributing Entity (State) 125% 125%
Eiriployers ' 0.75% 0:75%-
‘Federal/private Fudning remitted by Employers 125%: 1:25%
La Villa 18D 202) Employer Confributions 5 98620
*EaVilla 1802021 Member Contributions $ 387627
L.a Villa 1SD 2020 NECE Oh-Behalf Contributions § 65730

ot o to the niployer contsibitions listed abiovs, there s aif additionsl surchargeall TRS employers
aré stibject 16 (regardiess of whether or not they participate in the IRS Care OFEB. program). When
employers Hiré a TRS retiree, they are reqiiired to pay to TRS-Cére, a monthly sirchérgé of $335 per
retiree. ) o ) ’

TRS-Care rfeceived Supplemental appropridtions from the State of Texas a5 the. Non-Employer
Contributing Entity it the amouiit 0f$230.8 million in fiscal year2020 to maintain premiums and benefit
fevels in the 2020-2021 bicanium,

E. Actuarial Assumptions

The actudrial valuation wa§ performed as of AugusfS 1;2019. Update procedires wete used 10 rall
Forward the Total OPEB Liabilify to August 31; 2020.

The gctuarial valiation of the OPEB plasi offéred through TRS-Carg is sitnilar-to the actuatial-valuation
performed for the perision plan, except that the OPEB Valuation is moré coniplex. Allthe demographic
assumptions, including ratés of retirement, termination, and disability, and most of the economic
assurptions, including general inflation and salary increases, used in'tlie OPEB valuation were ideritical

to those used in' the respective TRS, pension valuation. The demographic assumptions weré developed

{f1 tha experience shidy performed for TRS for the period ending Aungust 31, 2017..
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the YearEnded Jine 30, 2021

d. DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Confinued

Thig following assumptions and other-inputs used for members of the TRS-Cafe are-based on an established
pattersi of practice and are identical to the assimnptions used in'the Augist31, 2019 TRS pens?op actuarial
Valiation that was rolled forward to August 31, 2020:

Rates.of Mortality General Inflation.
Rates of Retirement "Wage Inflation-

Rates of Tenmination

Expected Payroll Growih

Rates of Disability Incidence

The active mortality rates were based on'90 percent of the RP2014 Employce Mortality Tables Yor males
and femalés, with full genetational iiiortality using Stale BB. The post-retirement mortality rates'for
healthy lives:were based on'the 2018°TRS of Texas Healthy Pensicner Mortality Tables, with fill
genefational projéction using the uliimaté improvement ratés from the most recently published scale (U-

MP)

Additional-Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation Date
.Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation Method
‘Single Discount Rate
Long-term Expected Rate

Muriicipal Bond Rate as 6f Augist 2020

Lastyear eiding Augist 31, in Projeétion Period
{100 years)

Inflation

-Salary Incredses.

Adhoe post-employment benefit changes

43

August31, 2019 rolled forward
to Avgust 31,2020
individual Entry Age Normal

Market Valobe
7.25%
725%

2.33% - Source for the rate is,
the Fixed Inicome Matket
Data/Yield Curve/Data
Municipal bonds with 20 years
o maturity that include only
federally tax-exemipt sminicipal
bonds as réportedin Fidelity
Index's ;20-Year Municipal GO
AA Tndax®

2119

2.30%
3.05% to 9,05% iricluding inflation
WNone




LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
‘Fot thé Year Ended June 30, 2021

J. DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAENS {Cantinped)

'S

F. Discount Rate:

A single diseournt rate 0f233% was used ta raeastre the tofal OPEB liability: ‘There was & décrease of .30
percent in the discoiit rate sirice the prévious yedr, Becausse the-plan is essedtially a“pdy-as-yousgo” plan,
thé single discount rate is.equal to the-prevailing municipal borid rate. The projection, &f-cash flows used
10'detérmine the discount fate assumed that ¢onttibutions froft aciivé membersand those of thé eontribuiting
cuiployets and the Hon‘éfiployér contributicn entity are riade at the stalufory required rafes. Based on
those assurmptions, thé OPEB plan’s fiduciary nét position wis projected to jiof be able 1o make all futiire
benefit payitierits of current plan fembers. "Therefore, the minicipal hond rate was used fof the long-term
rate of refirn and was-applied+to all periods of projected benefits payments to determine the total OPEB ™
Hability. ' o '

The souscs of the municipal bond raté is thé Fidelity “20-year Munigipal GO AA Tndex?:as:of August 31,
2020 usinig the fixedinconie Tinicipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally fax-
exempt municipal bonds. )

G. Discount RateSensiiivity Analysis

The following schedule shows thie nipact of thg Net OPEB Liability if the diS¢ount rate used was 1% or:

Jess than and 1% greater than the discount zate thaf was used in measuring the Net OPEB Ligbility.

| a%Decfeasein CuffentSinglé 1% Incredse in
| Discount Rate (1:33%) | Discount Rate {2:33%). | Discotint Rate(3.33%).

[a Villa's pfoportiohate. ;
share of the Net OPEB Tlability: | _ . 2935806|8 2446509 |% 2,060,036

H. OPEB Liabilifies, OPEB Expeiise, and Deferred Outilow of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resoitrces Related fo OPEBs

-AtJunie 30,2021, the District reported a liability of §2,446,509for its propoitionate share 6f the TRSs Net
OPEB liability. This liability reflects a reduction. for State OPEB support provided ia the District. The
amount recognized by the District as its proporfionate share of the Net-QPEB liability, the related Stdte
Support, and the t6tal portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with the District were ag follows:

District's Propottionite share of thie collective Net OPEB liability $ 2,446,509
$tate's propertionate share that is associated with the.District 3,287,522
Total 4 5734031

4




LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRIGT
‘Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30,2021

.J. DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT-BLANS {Contiui

The Net OPEB liability was rieasuréd as of August’31,2020 afd the Total OPEB Liability used tocalculate
the Net OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that dato. The employer’s propértion
‘of the Net OPEB Liability was based on thé employer’s contributions to the OPEB plan felative to the
«contributions of all emplayersto the plan for the period September 1, 2019 thr August 3 1,2020,

At August 30,2020 the employer’s-pfoportior j_af'i}la‘ colléctive Nét OPEB Liability was -00464357241%;
which was an increase (decrease) of (.0000125646)%.from ifs proportionmeasured as:of August 31, 2019,

Healtheare Cost Trend Rutes Sensitivily Analysis
The following, presents the tiét OPEB liability of the. plan using the-assumed healthicare dost trend rate, as

well as what the net OPEB liability woild be.ifit were calculated using a trend rate that i one-percentage
-‘point lower or one-percentage Pﬁiﬁthﬁgh@r.than‘,‘the assumed healthcare cost retid fate:

1% Décféasé in Cutrent Healthcara. A% Incrédse In
. ... | Healthcare Trend Hate | | CdstTiend Rate || Healthcare Trend Rate

La ViiE's pragortionate
shafe of thié N&t OPEB liabilitys 1% 1,998,485 | & 2,446,500 |4 _ 3043215

Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation—The following were chaniges-to the actuarial assumptibns
or ‘_othetiin‘?ﬁts that affected measirement of the Total OPEB liability since the prior measurement period:

»  Thediscountgsite was changed frof 2,63 percentas of August 31,2019 16 2,33 percent as of August
31,2020. This change increased the Total OPEB Liability, |

= Theparficipation rate fof post:65 réfirées was Iowered from 50 percent 1o 40 percent. This changed
loweréd the Total OPEB Liability.

The xiltimate health ¢are‘tiend rate assumption was lowered from 4350 percent to 4,35 petcent dsa

result of Congress” repeal of the excise (Cadillac) fax on ‘high-cost -employer health plans iri

Décembet 2019: This change Towered the Total OPEB Liability. ’

=f}hangf¢s ‘of Benefit ‘Termis Since the Prior Meastréitient Date — Theré wefe o changes in.benefif terms-
'sincé the prior ineasurement date.

For thie ended Tune 3 0, 2021, the Districtrecoghized OPEB expense 6£'$812,257 and revenue of $22,827
for support provided by the State:
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes-to ihe,Fmanmalﬁtatements
For the Year Epded June “30 2021

J. DEFINED OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS (Continiied?

AtJung 30} 2021, the District reported ité proporiionate shdre of the TRS*s-deferred outflows of resources

and deferred ‘inflows of resources felated topus'f—emplo;,'ment ‘benefits from the following sources:

‘ Déférfe'df ‘Deférféd
Outflowsof | Infidws of
- " . o . o ... | Resturgés §  Resodices,
'|bifterences betiveen expected and actial ecorioniic Exprrience: } % 28,008 |8 119,648,
|changesin Sctuarial assumptions: 150,899 671,823,
Difference between projected and acti!almvestment eamlngs 795, e
: Changes in pragortion and difference batweenthe employer’ sccntrlbutior}s oo
and the piroportionate share of cantsibutions 463,087|  _ 389455
' Totalasof August 31, 2020measurement date | 742879 7,180,927
[contrituitions paid 1o TRS subsequent to'the ricastiferent date 81,623 =
'Tata‘l.as-of fiscal ye'at:-end B T % Easm 8 2180,927.

The riet amouts of the. employer 's baldnces of deferred outflows and inflows of respurces: re]ate& to’'OPEB

will be recogmzed i OPEB éxpense as follows:

| Veéar. endedAugustBl Bensmn’ExpenseAmounl, '
12022 s {(230,470)
12025 (230,576)],
12024 _.(230,637)
|2025 ~ (230,622)
112026 I £165274)
[|Théfeafier (350,469)

K: RETIREE HEALTH CARE PLAN

Plan .Descr:ptmn The La Villa Independent Schiool District coutiibiites tothe Teias Public School
Retired Employees Group Tnsuranée Program, (TRS-Care), & cost-sharing mu!np]e—employer defiiied
Benefit postémployment health care plan administered by the Teacher Retirement System of;
Texas. TRS-Care prowdes health care coverage for certain persons (and ﬂxenr dependents) whu retlred
onder 'the Teacher Retitement System of Taxas The statutmy authonly for the program is Texas
Insurance: Code, Chapter 1575. Section 1575 052 granfs the TRS Board 6f Trastecs the- authonly to
estahhsh and ariiend basic and. opnonal grouy' insufanice. coverage for partlclpants The Teachet
Retirement System “of Texas issucs a pub}:cly Javailable financial report that includes finaniial
staternénts and requ:red. suppléntentary information for TRS-Caré. That Tepdit- may be obtdified by
*vxsmng the 'IRS'ch s:te at Wwwitrs.state: t:s us under the TRS Pubhcanons heading; ‘by ertmg to the

......

Aﬂstm "Testas 78701, or by callmg the TRS Commumcatmns Department at 1-800-323- 8778
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Endéd Jutie 30,2021

K. MEDICARE PART D-ON BEHALF PAYTMENTS

Medicare on Behalf Payments. The Medicare Prescription: Diitg, Iniprovement: and Modemization
Act 02003, which was effective January 1, 2006, established prescription drug coverage for Medicare
beneficiaries known as Medicére Part D.. One of the piovisions of Medicare Part D allows forthe Texds
Public School Retired Employee Group, Insuraneé Program (TRS-Care) to receive reliree drug subsidy
payments from the federal governmient to offset certain prescription drug expenditures for li gible TRS-
Care participants. These  on‘behalf paymeits mist be recognized as equal revenues and
experiditures/expenses. by each reporting entify. The on behalf payments. for La" Villa Independent

L. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferigd sevenvie at year end consisted of thie following:

School District for 2021,2020 and 2019 were $23,675, $22;887, and $18,474 respectively.

‘ Special Débt
Genéral Revenug Service
Fiind Furid Etifid Total,
Net Tax Revenue $ 171,051 $ = 8§ 41,527 3 242,578
Total Defetred Revenué .8 171,051 & - . $ 41537 8 213578

M. DUE FROM & DUE TO STATE AGENCIES

The District participates in a variety of federal arid state programs from which it reteives grants to partially
or fully-finance certain activities. In addition, thé District réceives entitléménis Fom the State through the
School Foundation-and Per Capitd Programs. Amiounts due frorm federal and state governmentsas of Jtine
30, 2021, dre summarized below. All federal grants shiown below are passed through the TEA and are

réported.on the combined financial statéricnts 45 Dueform State Agencies.

DUE STATE FEBERAL o
EROM.FUND  ENTITLEMENTS GRANTS TOTAL
General $ 960,568 '3 - § '86D568
Special Reveque 16,636 77177 793,813 .

Total _ 977:204 TITATT 1,754,381

TO FUND
General 7443 - 7,443
Special Revenue . BB.E28 443 469,371
$ 76373 5 443 5 76814
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT. SCHO oL DISTRIC’I'
Nutcs to the Fmancwl Statcments
Farthe Year Ended Jhine 30 2021

N. REVENUE FROM LOCAL AND INTERMEDIATE so"t)R’CEs,

Diiring the'yearendéd, revenues from local and intermediate sources coiisisted of the’ following:

Special Dehit Capital
General Reverue .Service Projects
Fand Fiind Fund Fund Total
Property Taxes $ 1200472 § = § 482244 § - 1,682,716
Penalties, |nterest and Other ) ,

Tax-reiatect indome 28197 - 7,834 - '34,031
Yiwestment Income 472 - - - 472
‘Food Sales L& - = o L3
“Go-curctlar Student’Activities ‘9,706 - - - 9,708
Other L 70,161, 2;5583 - = 72,714
Total § 1,307,008 S 2553 § 490,078 5 - 4,799,639

0. HEALTH CARE.COVERAGE

;
P.
>

Q

The @rgamzatmn,has evaluated subsequent evénts through December 17,2021 thé date whichthé financial
statements-were available to be issued.

During the yearg ended June 30, 202f employees*of the"sttnct were covered by hédlth insurance plan
(the Plan) “The Distzict pmd premiums of: 3429 per mtmth per employes.1o'thé Plan Employees, at
their. optmn, anthorized- payro]! thhholdmgs topay prem fums for dependents All premmms were patd
1o & licensed insurér. The Plan was authonzed by Article 3512, Texas Insurante Gode and was
docimetited By-confractinal agreement. The contract ‘between the Dmtrlct end the. Ilcensed insurer Is.
reuewaﬁ]c Octobesr i, and “terms of coverage -and prcmmm cosls dre includéd in the contractual
provisions.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

1, Contingencies

“The sttrwt.pamctpates in grant programs which are governed by various rules of the grantcr agenmes

Costs cha:ged to the féspective grant programs are 5ub_]ect to audit and adjustmént By the grantor
agencxes, therefure, to the extent that the. D lxstnct has not complied ‘with the iles and regulahons
goveming the grants, refunds of any money recéived may be required and the collectabihty of any.
related feceivable may be ‘impaired: In the gpiniot of the District, there aremo significant contingent
liabilities re!atmg to compliance with the niles and regulatmns ‘governing the respeciwe grants;
iherefore nosprowsion has been recorded inthe -accompanying basi¢ finanéial statements for.such
-connngencms:

’EVALUA-’ILION OF SURSEQUENT EVENTS.
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LA-VILLA INDEPENDENT.SCHOOL DISTRICT
N otes to'the Financial Sfatements
For the Year Ended Jusie 30, 2021

R, MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT-HEALTH CARE

For fully insured districts/éntitics/risk Podls, enter ifié total amount pa:d by ‘the district for emp!oyee health
‘cére premiums as reported fo'TEA- per NoteK

4) Total District Préemiiim paid for healthicare 2020-2021 $__ 441870

“b) Subtrdct ahy non-medical expenditures '
Life Insurarice $ 37
Liong-Term Disability =

&) 2020:2021 Mainténance ‘of Effort: 3 ~441 ,294

'S. GASB 63

GASB 63— Finaniial Reporting of Deferrel Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resoiirces, and
Net Posmon proyides fi nanclal repomng iguidarice for deferred outflows ofresources and deferred: inflows
of fesurces. Deferred outflows cf resources are the consumption of rief assets by tha gov.(emment that is
apphcabl to.a future reponmg penod and deferred inflows of resources are the acquisition of net assets by
the. governiient that-is applicable fo a future repnrtmg perio iod. Deferred outffows of tesources and deferred
mﬂows nf’resources are mcorgorated into the défi mtmns ofthe requmed components of theresmualmeasure
and that measare is, renamed ds netpomtlon, rather than net assets.

“T, GASB 68

GASB. 68 — establishes standards for accouriting .and financial reportmg, bt not fundinig or budpetary
standards, for defined benefit pensions and defined. contributlon ‘pensions provided 16-the employees of
statg and local governinent emiployers through pegsion p!ans thaf are administered through trusts Gr
equivalent arrangements. criferia 4s’.déscribed n GASB 67. This statement replaces ‘the requirements of
GASB. Statementz? Accountmg for Pensidins by State and Lotal Govemmeiital Employers. Statement No..

71 amends Statement No. 68 tc reqmre:that at transition, a govetnment recognize a bepinning outflow of

Tesources forifs pension contributions; if any,_made subsequent t6 the measurement daté ofithe beginning
pension liabjlity
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SCHEDULE OF REVE.NUES EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

LA VILLA INDEPENDENT.SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGET AND ACTUAL.- GENERAL FUND
_FORTHE YEARENDED.JUNE 30,2021

EXHIBIT G-1

Aeted) pdnoiints

Data et Variaice With
‘Coniral Budgeted Amounts {GAAP BASIS) lea!‘ l?_udget
Codes S __ - Posilive or
’ fj ging] Final lwevgz‘ﬁve}:
REVENUES:
s700. ‘Total Local.and Intérmediate Sources $ 1442835 5 1,349320 5 1307808 § 42312
5800 ‘Siate Proprdm, Reverives. 6,354, 91 6,973,146 6,776,378 (196,768)
4900 Federal Progrdam Revenues 1200 $53:252 523,489 (29.763)
3020 ‘Total Reventies 7998554 BEISTIE  BEUGRTS (268.843)
EXPENDITURES:
Cittrenit:
0011 Instrictiof 3,453,010 3,203,022 3,262,733 {59711y
0012 Instrictiofial Resources and Media Services 11,719 135.083 129,833 5250
0013 Curficulum and Instructional Sfaff Development 17719 181,945 116.977 64,968
6021 Ingtructional Leadership 177,314 - = s
0023 Schuol Leadershlp 5!9 718 499310 496,102 3208
0031 .Guidance, Cdunseling, and Evilnation Séryices 289 07 274221 274,051 176
0033 Hea]tft Services 100,045. 110,347 117,029 (6,582)
0034 Student (Pupil) Transporiation 147,680 92,590 49,521 43.069
35 Food Sérviées 8.715 543,497 510,743 32,748
0036 Extracurricular Activities 425,832, -431.808 379,106 102.702
0041 -General Administration 863.094 777667 698,913 “78:754
0051 Facilities. Maintenance and Operatiéns 1;140,310 1,191,726 1,086,309 105.417
0053 Security and Moaitoring Servides 144371 128,705 105.546 23,159
9053 Data Processing Services 203,502 293,337 280,965 12372
o061  Community Services 35,830 14,793 5271 9,524
‘Débt Service:
6071 Principal on Long-Term Debt 172,540 148.835 134,541 14,254
0072 nterest an Long-Tersy Debt - 80.819 94,321 (13,502}
0073 Bond Issua.nce Cost and Fees = - 2.000 {2:000)
Capital Ouflay; .
0081  Pacilities Acquisition and Construction - 33.352 z 33352
Intergovernmentals
9093  Paymenis to Fiscal Agent/Member Districtsof SSA 135,000 152.135 - 152,135
0099 Other Intergovernmental Charges 13177 18,151 13612 4539
£030 Total Expenditures 7960184  B36L345 7:757,573 603,772
1100 Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 38370 514373 849302, 734,929
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
2011 Transfers'Out (Use) - (50,089) (28.540). 21545
1200 Net Change'in Fund Balances 38,370 464,284 820.762 356.478.
0109 Furid Balance- July'l (Beginting) 1639269  1:639.269 1,639.269 =
3000 Fufid Balance - June:30.(Ending) $  L677639 8§ 2103553 5 2.460,031 % 356,478
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE:QF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE, OF THE NET PENSION LIABIGITY
TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM. OF TEXAS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED-JUNE 30, 2021

T —n ———

sztm FY: 2020 ! FY.2019

Plan’ YearZGZD Plan Yegr ~2019 E‘lan Year2018

District’s Propoition of the Net Pensjon. Liability {Assety 0.004882058%  0.004370449%  0.005015069%

Disirict’s Proportionate Shate of Net Pensio Liability {Assct) $§ 23076155 2276575 § 376046

States Propottionate Share of the Net Pension Tiability. [Assct} Associated With 2:521,345 3,522,360 3.671,699
fhe District

Total § 602890 § 5798935 5 64321IS

Distficts Covered PayrglL S 5836334 § 605441 S 4280955

Distritts Proponionmc Share of the Net Péisid L.iab‘illiv (Assetfas a 46.99% 37.60%. 64:48%

Pércentage of its Coveréd Payroll

Plan Fidtigiary Net Position as-a Percentage of thi-Total Pension Liability 75.:54% 75.24% T374%

Nole: “GASB Codification. Vol. 2, P20,183 reqmres that the ;nlbrmauan on this schiedule be data from the period coféspbrding iith the
periods covered as of the measurerhent dates of Augusi 31, 2024 for yesr 2021, August 31, 2019. i'uryeur 2020, Avpust:31, 2018 for year
2019, Auguist 31, 2017 for year 2018, Aiigiist 31, 2016 for ycar 2017, nAlignst 31 2015 for-year 2016 and Augnst 31, 2014 for year2015;

This schedule shows only the'years for whichthis information is available: Additional informarion will be added until 10 years of data
are available and reported.
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EXHIBIT G2

EY2018  IFY2017¢  FY2016-  FY20IS
Plad Year 2017 . Plan Yesr 2016 _Plan Year 2013 PlanYem_’.‘ZOIﬂl

0.004352636%  0.004796722% 0.0042264% 1.0028693%

s 1391738 S 1812610 8 1493976 $ 766,403

2265158 2,692,256 2,654,898 2,172,430

S 3656806 5§ 4504866 §  Al4gEM § 293883

$ 4,549451 $ 4540407 % 3,237,190 ¢ 2.938,833

:30.59% 39.84% 35.26%: 26.08%
82.17% 78.00% 7843% 83.25%
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LA VILLA INDEFENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS FOR PENSIONS
TEACHER:RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS
FOR FISCAL-YEAR202]

2021 2020 . 2019

Contractully Required Costritition 5 96,054 5 7632 5 —
ohtuton i Reftion e Conratuallyflrod Comyalo (196,054 (n2.632) (%6724)
Contribution Deficlency (Ekcess) s -8 = =3 - _’
Distrier's Covered Payrait $ S $ 598,426 § P

Coftribiutions as & Percefitnge of Covered Payroll 3.86% 323% 3:33%

Noté: GASB-Codification, Vo, 2,220,183 requires that the data ift this schedule be presénted as 6F the District's respedfive fiscal ysars as
opposed lo ;hgtjm(xpc?iods covered by the measurement. dafes. ending August 31 of the preceding year.

“Tliis schedule shows only the years for which this-information is-available: Additional isforimation will be'added until 10-years of data are
availeble and fepdried.
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2018 2017 _ 2016 2015
$ 147.082. 8 i4i;252 151,669 §' 127,543
{137.082) (1411252 {151,669), (127,544)
5 'y -s -s -
5 4,676,802 $ 4.395307 % 4,540,067 S 42237190,
3:14% 3.07% 333% 301%

EXHIBIT G-3
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT G«

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRIGT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE.OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS
FOR:THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

Disfricl’s’ Proportmn of the Nét Liability (Asset) fof Other

PnstemPloyment Benefns
!

District’s Pidportionate Stiare of Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

States Prpp:_!riii_malﬁc Shiire of the Ne{ OPEB Iability (Assét)

Associnted. with the Distfict

District's Covered Payrol]

Diétrict's Proportionate Share of the Nel OPEB.Liability
(Asset) as-a Percantape-ofits Covered Pagroll

Pian FidieiaryiNet Positionas 2 Peicentage of the’ Total OPEB:

Liability

“FY 2021 Fy 2020

FY 2019 FY20!8
‘ ‘Plan Year 2020 Pian Year 2019 Plan Year2018 .Plan Year 2017

5

0.006435724%  0.006348289%

2,446,509 8 3049473 5

3,287,522 4,052,070

-

0,007237441%  0.0061i3278%

3813721 8 2638435

3.766:206, 3:367,635

5734031 8 TIULES S

9319837 § 6026070

5336334 § 6054714 5

45.85%, 5037%

4.99% 2.66%

4.280/955. § 4549451

84:8% SE43%

1.57% 0.51%

Nate; GASB. Cndgf‘ ication, Vo, 2, P50,238 states that the information on this scﬁudu!e shuuld be determined ps of the medsurement daté;
Therefore the amoimLs: rcporled for FY 2021 2ré for the rieasiirement date 6f August 3. 2[)20 "The amounis for FY 2020 are'for the
measurcmen[ dafe'of Augusi 31, 2019. The amounits for FY 2019 #re for the measurement date z’mgusl 31,2018, Theamounts:forFy

2(118 are based on the; Augiist 31, 2017 measurement date.

This schedule shows only the years for which this informaiion is available. Additional information will.be-ndded until 10 years of data are:

available and reported.
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' EXHIBIT G-5
LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS FOR OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021
2021 2020 _ 2019 2018
Contractially Required Coniribution $ 98,620 S A6:774 & 46,345 §. 48,135
Contribution in Relatidn to the Contractually Required Contribution. (98:620) (46774} (46,343} (48,135}
‘Cantribution Deficigricy (Excess) $ -5 -5 -% :
Districts Covered Payroll $ 5073753 5348426 § 6054714 § 4,676,802
Conl(ributions as:a Peréentage of Covered Payroll ‘1.54% 0:87% 0.77% 1.03%

Note: ‘GASB Codification, Vol. 2,.P50.238 requiires that the data in this schédulé be prcscntcd as af the District's respeclive fiscal years as
opposcd to the time pcnads covered by the mcdstiremeént dn(mendmw 2 Algiist31 of the prtcedmg Year,

Information in this schedule should. be provided only 'ifoplhe-yedréx whetedats i5 atdilable, Evéntudlly 10 yesrs of data shoyld bé presenred.
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COMBINING AND OTHER STATEMENTS




LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JIEJNE3QM,‘2021: o o
N 21z 255 263 270

Dara. ESEATitle]  ESEATA  TiteilLA  ESEA VI BB
Control PartC Trainingand  EnglisiLang,  Rural & Low
Codss _ Migant  Recuifing Acquisition  Income

ASSETS k
16 ‘Cash.and Cash Equivalents § 141373 § - % - 8 53
iza0 Due from Other Governments ‘89,730 3Z,095 560 -
1260 Due from Other Funds. 49394 = 1,759 10,904
1000 Total Assets 5 280497 §. 32095 § 2319 5 10957

LlABIElTIE_S.
2110 Accounts Payable 5 - 5 - 5 2259 % -
2160 -Accrued Wages Payable z - - -
7170 Dueto'Other Funds. 280,497 32,095 60 10957
2180 Dugto Other Governmerits .- i - -
Z1s0  Dueio Student Groups. - - - -
2200 Actrued Expenditures - - . -
2000 Total Linbilities 280,497 32,095 . 2319 10957

FUND B_QLANCES

Restricted Fund Balancg;

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction - - - -
3600 Lnassigned Fund Balénce . - - .
3000  Total Fund Balances T - = -
4000 Total iﬁ&bﬂfﬂes and Fund Balances § 280497 § 32,095 § 2319 § 19,957
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EXHIBIT H-1 (Cort'd)

273 274 276 277 282 289 331 414
Mathernatics& ~ GEARUP  Titlel-SIP Coronavirus ~ ESSERMI  Other Federal  $SA-Career State
Science. Academy Reiigf Find* Special & Techiiical - .Instructiornial
Partnerships Grent CARES RevefiicFunds  BasicGrant  "Materials
$ 4050 § 32600 5 - § 31350 § - § 4RSS - 85 66878
- 27,543 12,042 - 163,845 - 9,007 2,553 16,122
- - 17.870 ‘ - 30,843 -~ 41,977
§ 4050 § 60,043 $ 29912 § 31350 § 163845 § 44675 5§ 2553 8 134977
$ = & = 3 I - 8 - 8 195 § - & 33048
- - - 3 9,446 - - S
4,050 59,534 29,912 31350 153,705 44,480 2,553 58,009
- = - - - - - 68,928
= 609 - - 64 - - -
4,050 60,143 29,912 311350 163,845 44675 2,558 "160,075
- -~ - - - - - (35.0%8)
- - - ~ ~ - - (35,098)
§ 4050 § 60,143 $ 29912 § 31350 $ 063,845 $ 44,675 & 2553 5 124,977
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LAVILLA INDEPENDENT SEHQQL [?ISTRI cT
~ COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE.30, 2021, ] o _

i 428 429 a6l 459
Data. OtherState  OtherSisie  Campus  OtherSSA.
Control Special Spegial Activity Special
Codes RevepueFtind RevénueFiids  Funds,  RevenucFunds

ASSETS
110 Cashand Cash Equivalents- $ - 8§ 15671 8 4319 § -
‘1240 Due from Other Govérnments: - - 514 2
J260 Duefrom Other Funds - 35925 143 -
1000 ‘Total Assels 5 < % 5159 § 5176 % -

LIABILITIES
2110 Accounts Payable B - 8 1 8 - § -
3160 ‘Accrued Wages Payable - - . -
2179 Due to Other Funds - 36,174 3209
2180 'Due to OtherGovernments - - . -
2190 Diig'to Student Grotips < - 1,877 -
2200 Accrued Expenditures . - - . -
2000 Total Lidbilities = 36,175 5176 -

FUND BALANCES

“Restricted Fund Balance:
3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction - 15,421 - 2
3600. Unassigned Fund Balance - - - .
3060 “Total Fund Balances B 15,421 - -
4600 “Totaf Liakilities and Fund Bafances % - % Si59% $ 5176 $ -
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ot 0z
Ndpmajor Capital
Special Prajects

Revenue Fiinds Fund

Total
Nonmajor
Governiedtal
Funds

$ 301319 § 2,245

$ 303,564

354,011 - 354,041
188,815 82,000  270.815

$ 844145 $ 84245 § 928390
$ 35503 § 102,031 § 37634
9446 - 9,446
746765 . 748,765
68,028 - 68,928
1877 - 1,877
1,303 - 1,303
863,822, 102,131 965,953
15421 . 15421
(35.008) (17,886) {53,984)
(19,677)  (17386) (37,563)

$ R44,145 § 84245 § 928,390
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‘LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL F UNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 202 1

217 255 263 270

Dat ESEATitlel  ESEAILA  TiflelLA ESEAVLPLB
Control Part C Trammgand English Lang,  Rural&Low
Codes Migrant Réériiting:  Acquisition Income
REVENUES: N
»5700, Total Local and Intérmediate Sciirces. 3 - 8 - 3 = & -
5800 State Program Revenues )y L pr =
5900 Federal Program Revenues , 108,448, 39,639 58 ™
5020 Total Reveniles 108,448 39,689 60 <
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

go1t  Instriiction 74,240 > -
Bol3  Curriculum and Instructidnal Staff Development T 39, 564 60 -
0031 -Guidance, Counseling, and Evaloation Services - 125 = -
0041  General Adminisiration 14.866. - - -
0052 Securﬂy and Monitoring Services o= - - -
0081 Community Services 19,342 - , o =
6030 Tatal Expenditurés . loedsy 39689 60 i
1300 Net Change in Fufid Balance - 2 £ -
0100 Fund Balance - July’{ (Beginding) - - ] ~ -
3000 Fund Balance - June 30 (Ending) L -8 =3 -3 s
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EXHIBIT H-2 (Cant'd)
273 274 276 277 282 ‘289 331 410
Mathe_qmiics’ & QEARTUP Title 1 -SIP Coronavirus ESSER II Qther Federal  SSA - Career Stafe.
Science Academy Reliet Fund Special & Technical - Instructional
Parinerships Grant CARES Revenue Funds  Basic Grant Miiterialg
5 - - % ~- '8 -~ § - $ - 8 2,553 8 -
~ - - - - - - 70,123
. 104,992 12,043 31,350 164.262 3,494 - .
- 104.992 12043 31,350 164262 3494 %353 70,123
- 104,992 12,043 31,350 89,914 3.494 2,553 71,623
. - - - 74,348 = = {1,500y
= - - - - = rd -
- 104,992 12,03, 31350 164,262 3491 2553 70,123
- - - - - . - (35,098)
§ - - § = 8 - 5 : 8 <8 =5 (35098
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LA VILLA ZNDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

FOR T HB YEAR E'NDED JUNE 30, 2021

A6l

o 428 429 459
Bou Other State  Dther-State Campus Other SSA
Contral Spccml Special Activity Special
Codes Revenuc Fund  Revenué Funds ‘Funds  'Révenuc Furids
REVENUES: |

5700 Totdl Local and Iritermediate Scurces 5 - § =~ 5 - § -
5800 Stafe Program Revenues 24395 = - -

5900 Federal Program Revenues - - - o
030 Total Revenues 24,395 . T " . "

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

boil !nstrucimn 5 - - -
bo13 Curr:cu[um and Instructional Staff Development - = = -
ovit  Guidance, Coinseling, and Evaluation Services . - = -
0041 General Adminisiration - - = -
0052 Securityand Monitoring Services 24,395 - - -
0061  Community Sprwces e - e i
6030 Total Expenditires 2439 < -
1200 Net Chdnge in Fund Balance - he - -
0100 Fiind Batance - July [ (Beginning). - 15421 ¥ -
3000 Fund Balance - June 30 (Ending) s = 8 15421 § ~ 3 -
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Total 602 Total
Nonmajor Capital Nonmajor
Special Projects  ‘Governmenta),
Revenue Furids Fiind Funds.
$ 2,553 § - 8 2,553
94,518 - 94,518
464,338 - 464,338
561,409 - 561,309
390,209 - 390,209
12,472 ~ 112,472
125 - 125
14,866 - 14,866
24,395 - 24,395
19342 - 19,342,
561,409 = 561,409
{19677)  {17.886], (37,563)
8 (196708 (173865 {37:363)

&

L

EXHIBIT H-2.

*




™

e
| o _ EXHIBIT H3.
! LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
: COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
| CUSTODIAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
- 863 865
Payroll Custodial “Total
Clearing  ‘Fund Student  Custodial
Fund Activity Acct Fimnds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalénts $§ 5433 5 49863 % 55296
Due:from Other Fudds - 5,610 5,610
Other Receiyables 2517 - 2,617
Tofal Assets 8,050 55,493 63:523
LIABILITIES:
Due'to Other Funds 8,050 - 8,050
Due to Studént Groups ~ 55473 55,473
Total Liabilitics 8,050 55473 63.523
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOQL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE. OF DELINQUENTTAXES RECEIVABLE
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Q) 2y @
Assessed/Appraised
Last 10 Years. _ Tax Rafes _ Vafiie for Sclicol
. L _ Maintenance Dbt Service. * Tux Purposes )
2012 and priot years Various: Vatious $ 314,070,424
2013 1,033800 0.270000 95,965,267
2014 1.170000 0:133800 101,944,547
2015 1.170000 0.133800 102,306,675
2016 1.170000 0.133800 72,821,190
2017 1.170000 0.133800 93,848,955
2018 {.170000 0.133800 99,628,786
2019 1.170000 0313800 102,753,711
2020 1.068400 0415400 108,669,780
2021 (Séhool year under audit) 1:054800 0.429000 llf}§35359‘89
1000 TOTALS
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EXL_-HB]’[‘J:l
(10§ (20) Gy (Bn (a0) (50)
Béginning Cuirent Entire Ending
Balance Years. Muintenance chtSell'\ii,cc‘ ‘Yi_:ax’s Balance
701/2020, Total Levy “Collections . Collections _ Adjustments 630/2021
$ BT S -3 g2 S 69 s 18137 78,973
6,888 - 943 ‘251 "(;3“"5"8)' 5316
5,989 - 584 67 (356) 4,982
8,593 : 1,599, 183 308 7,200
7514 - 1.877 214 259 5,682
;934 = 3,737 427 318 8,088
18,889 = 4384 502 336 14,339
40,441 - 10,285 2,759 £2,193) 25,204,
72764 - 24,974 9,708 {7,006y 31,076
< 1,673,868 1,148,701 467,197 (3,647) 55329
BRIS.S  LOTIMEB S 1200795 S 1o 5 6888 S 23698
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- _ . EXHIBIT 2
' . LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES; EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAM
o ] FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021
Data ' ' Actual Amounts  Varfanee Will
il _ 1GAAP BASIS) Final Budget
Co?lm. Builgeted Amounts Positiveor
Colles Posiltyeor
A Orininal Final {Megative]
" REVENUES: T S i '
5700 "Total Loca) and Intermediate’ Sources s 12,000 °$ w 8 = § =
5800 State Programi Revenues 2500, 4,794 4794 .
5900 Federal Program Revenues 426,890 '541:238 504,895 {36343y
5020 Total Revenics. lao  osagok  S00e  gedu)
EXPENDITURES:;. ' N ‘ '
Cisrrent:
ou3s  Food Services 441,340 534458 501,898 52,560
6030 “Total Expérditure§ 441340 534458  S0LB9R 32,560-
1206 Net Change in Fund Balances . Tisw 2391 (3.783)
0106’ Fund: Balance - July T (Beginnitig) 40,177 40,177 40,177 -
3000 ‘Fund Balance - june 30 (Ending} $ 40177 § 51751 § 47,968 § A3,783)




528,440 §

515,042 8§

.
EXHIBIT J-3
LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL: DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDI’I’URES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL. —DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 o
Data W Actuzl Amounts. Vnnnm:e'W'lh
; , {GAAP BASIS) Findl Budget
g::‘m] Budgucd )Erqoul'{? - Pasitive or
® "Original Eftal (Négative}
REVENUES; '
5700 “Total Local and Intermediate Sources 506,912 § 490,054 § 490,078 § 24
5800 State Program Revenues 187,174 262.070 262,070 -
'5020 Total Revenues 694,086 952424 752.148 23
*EXPENDITURES:
Deébt Service:
0070 Priricipal.on Lorig-Term Debt 415,000 415,000 415,000 .
0072 Triterést on Long:Term Débt 329,175 329,175 329,175 1 -
6030 Total Expenditures T4ITS 744,175 744,175 S
1100 ‘Excess (Deﬁcmncy) of Revenues .Qver (Under) o gsg,‘ogé} 7,949 7873 24
Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES): | o o
7915 TransfersIn .= . . 50,089 28.540. (21,549)
1200 Net Change in Fund Baldnces {50,089) 58,038 36,503 (21:525)
0100 Fund Bafange ~July 1 (Beginning) 575,529 578.529 578,529 -
3000 Fanid Balahce - June 30.(Ending) 636,567 S (21:525)
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REPORTS ON
INTERNAL CONTROLS, COMPLIANCE
AND
FEDERAL AWARDS




Raul Hernandez & Company, P:C.
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Rd., Suite 102
 Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361)980-0482 Fax (361)980-1002

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Complidnce and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Governirent Auditing Standards

Independéiit Auditors™ Report

La Villa Independent School District
500 East 9% Strect
La Villa, Téxas 78562

We have *andi'_ted, in accordance with the auditing standards generally acceptéd in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the, Uriited States,
the financial statements of the governniental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund inforriation of La Villa Indejjendent School District, as of
and forthe year ended June 30,2021, and the related riotes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise La Villa Independent School District’s basic ‘financdial
statemenits, and have issued our report thereon dated December 17, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Ini planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered La Villa
Independent School District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to -detérmine the audit procedures that ar¢ appropriste in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions ofi the financial statéments; but not for the pirpose
of expressing an opinton on the effectiveness of La Villa Independent School District’s
intérnal control. Accqrdingly, we do Tiot express an opinion-on the effectiveness of La
Villa Independent School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or aperation of a control does
not allow.management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assipned
functions, to prevent, or detect and Gorréct, misstatements ofi & timely basis. A material
weakaess is,a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, -such thai
there-is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements Will not be prevented, or detected .and corrected on a timely basis. A
sigrificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intérnal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, Vet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance. )

T




Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether La Villa Independent School
District's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

/‘Przﬁ,/a;./dﬁrzler(/z.‘f #* C)ﬂwfaam;/. Pﬁ

Corpus Christi, Texas
December 17, 2021
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Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accounfants
5402 Holly Rd, Suite 102
. Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361)980-0482 Fak (36139801002
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal
Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

Independent Audijtors® Report

La Villa Independent School District.
500 East9* Street
La Villa; Texas 78562

Report an Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited La Villa Independent School Districts. compliance with ihe fypes of compliance
requirements described in tlie OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
‘on each La Villa Independent School District’s-major fedéral programs for the year ended June 30,2021.
La Villa Independént School Districts® major federal programs are-identjfied in the summary of auditor’s
results section'of the accompanying séhedule of findings-and questioned cosfs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with fedecal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable t6 its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Quir fesponsibility is to express an opinion on compliance For ¢ach of La Villa Independent Sshigol
District’s nidgjor fedéral programs based on ouir audit 6fthe types of compliance requirenients referred
to aboye. We conducted our dudit of complianice in accordince with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to. financial audits contained i
Govermmnent Auditing Standards, issugd by the’'Comptroller General of the United States; and the dndit
requirements of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirertents, Cost Principles, and Auidit Regiiiremeiits for Federal Avards {Uniform Guidaticg). Those
‘standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of comipliance requitéments referred to above
that could have a direct and material cffect on a mijor federal programi aecinred. An audit includes
examining, ort 2 test basis, eviderice about La Villa Independent $chool District’s compliance with those
requirements and performing ssch other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Wé believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on complijarice for each major

federal program. However, our audit does not-provide a legal determination of La Villa Independent
-School District’s compliance,
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Pragram

In our opinjon, La Villa Independent School District complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements feferfed to above that coiild have a difect and material effect on edch-of its
major federal programs for thie year ended June 30,2021,

Report on Internal Control.over Conipliance

‘Mandgement of La Villa Independent School District is responsibie for establishing and maintaining
efféctive internal control 6ver compliance withi the types of compliance requirements irefe;red' 1o above: In
platning and performing .our dudit 6f compliance, we.conisidéred La Villa. Indépendent School District’s

.

intethal ‘conirol over complignce with the types. of requirements that could have'a direct and matérial éffect
‘on each major federal program to determine the auditing proceduires that are appropriate in the:circumstances
for the purpose.of expressing an opinion oncompliance fof each niajor federal prograrh &nd to test and report
oA internal confrol over compliarice i accordance with the Uniform Gitidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an dpinion of the-effectiveness of intémal control aver ompliance: Accordingly, ‘we do not
express it opinion on the effectiveness of Lia Villa Independent School District’s internal control.cver
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over complignce exits whien the design or operation of a control over
complianéé does riot allow management of employees, in the normal consse of petforming their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detcct and correct, noncompliance ‘with a type of compliance Tequirement of '@
federal program on & timely basis, A material weakness ininternal control over compliance isa deﬁc‘ig‘nqy—,
orcomibination of deficiencies, in intcrnal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
thist material ‘noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program ‘will not be
prevented, or detected and corrécted, on a timely basis: A significant deficiency in titernal control-over
campliange s a deficiency;.or a combination of\ deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with-a type
of compliance tequirement of a federal program that is less severe, than = material weakness in intefnal
control Gver compliance, yet important enough to meritattention by those chargéd with govemance.

‘Our consideration of intefnal control over-cdmpiiaﬁce was for the lifiited purpose.described in the first
paragraph 6 this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance
that might be-material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, We did notidentify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliaitce that we. consider to material weaknesses. However; material weaknésses may exist
that have not been identified.

‘Thie:piirpose of this report on internal contfol. over compliance is soleiiy to describe the scope of our testing

pf' internal control over compliance and the results-of that tésting based on the reqiiivenients of the Uniform
Guidante. Accordingly, this repoit is not suitable for any otherpurpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of La Villa Independent School District as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated December 17, 2021, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements
or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Rast Hosnandsy v Caopany, PO

Corpus Christi, Texas
December 17, 2021
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LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
A. Summary of Auditor's Results
1. Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Intemal control over financial reporting:

One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? ~ Yes X _None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X No

2. Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that

are not considered to be material weaknesses? _ Yes X _ None Reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for

major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 200? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
10.553 School Breakfast Program
10.555 National School Lunch Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $750.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes _ No

B. Financial Statement Findings
NONE

C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
NONE
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LA VILLA TNDEPENDENT SCHOOL, DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-AUDIT FINDINGS-
EOR THE'YEAR ENDED JIUNE 30, 2021

6




[

NA.

A

'CORRECTIVEACTION PLAN

LA VILLA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOR THEYEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021



LA VIILA NDEPENDENT SGHOOLDISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL, AW,ARDS
FDR.'I‘I-IE“YEAR ENDED JUNE.30, 2021

¥

EXHIBIT K-1 (Contd}

T ) @
FEDERAL GRA'NTOR! Federal Pass-Thirough.
PASS-TH’ROUGH GRANTQR/- Assistance  Entity. identifying Federal
PROGRAM or CLUSTER TITLE. ‘Listing No, Nuniber Expénditures
IDEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY o
Covu) 19 Cnmqa.\nms Re]lef Fund 21,019 52302002 5 31,350
Total: Passedl Through State Depariment of Education ] 31350,
TOTAL DEPARTMENT-OF THE TREASURY 31:350
L.S: DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed” Thrcmuh Suile Departinent ol Edicatian i
‘ESEA, Title I« Part A = ImproVing Basic, Programs 240104 2088010110891 22417
.ESEA, Tiile.I. Part A~ Improvire. Basic Prograrms B4010A  21680101108914 - 353213
Total Assistance Listing Nirmber 84.010A, 375630
ESEA, Title 1, Part G=Migratary Children 84011 20610101108914 67,635
ESEA,; Title, Part. G- Migratatry Children 84011 FYGIPIONI0RD14. } #0814
“Total Assistance Listing Number 84,011 108449 -
R —————rrerm—
'SSA = Career'and Technical - Basic Grant 84048 0615001108914 1953
.SSA Careerani‘l‘echnm ‘Basic Grant 84 048 31615001 108914. 600
Total Assistance; Listing Niimbgr.84.048 2553
GEAR UP 843345 2061500108914 23758
GEAR UP ‘843343 2161500108914 . -82233
Total Assistange Listing Numbier 843315 104,991
Title )T, Pdri A~ English Langiiage Acijisition 343654 2067100110894 60
ESCA, Title JI; Vart A, Teachir Principal Training 84.367A  20641501108914 12474
ESEA, “Tlﬂa 1L, Part A, Teachei Principal Training BEIGTA  21694501108914 21215
"Total Assistance Listing Number §4.367A 39.689
Tiile T S1P Acddeiy Grant B1377A  21521001108914 12,043
Elemeritary & Secoadary School Emergency RelictFd 84.92500  20521001108914 13.988
Elementnry & S'Ecandary School Emergency: ReliefiFd 84.425D  21521001108914 84.463
‘Elementary Secondary Séhool Emergency Reliet-li 844250  $423D200042 164,262
Totaf Assistanée Listing Number 84.425 262,715
84424 20680101108914 893
84,424 21680101108914 2 602,
“Tétal Assistance: Listing Number. 84.424 3485
“Tolal Passed Tiicough State Depanimesit of Edilation 909,625
TOTAL 11.S, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

909.625



LAVILLATNDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRIGT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
__ . FORTHEYEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2021

EXHIBIT K~

m @) @) @
FEDERAL GRANTOR! Federal Pass-’I'hrough
PASS<THROUGH GRANTOR/ Assrs:ance Entity Ideniif¥ing Federal
PROGRAM or CLUSTER TITLE - Listing Nor Number Expérditires
Us. DEPARTMENT OF AGH RICULTURE .
Pasedl Throuuh itic StaleDe arimen! oFAEneﬂ!tun
*Scfiool Breakfést Program, 10,553  Tr0 179,805
*Natlorial School Luiich Progranr = Cesh Assistance: 10535 7130221 299,243
*Natlpnal Schiool Linch Prog, ~Non-Cash Assistance 10:595, 7130221 23,845
“Total Asglgtaqqulstlng Nuribeér 10.555 335,090
“Total CHild Nuteition Cluster 504,885
Totil Passcd Thiqugh the State Departiment o Agricultire 504895
‘TOTAL U, DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE © Spaggs |
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 5 15T |

*Clustered Programs

Seé Accompanying Nétes to the Schedule-al Expenditures of Federal Ayards.
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LA VILLA [NDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE SCHEDULE EKPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR E ENDED iUNE 30, 2021

Basls of Présentation:

The.accompanying schedule of expenditires of federal awards includes the federal grant: dctivity of La,
Villa ?ndependentSchonI District: The Information in thls schédule s presented i accordance with the
requirements of Title 2,U.5..Code of Federal Régulations Part’ 200, Urilform Admm:strative‘Reqm rements,,
Cost ‘Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Unlfarm 'Guidanc } Tperefo;e, some
ambounts presented in thisschedulé.may differ from amoiints presented in, orused Tn the preparatisi of
the basic financial statements.

sk

Summary 6f Significant Atcounting Policies:

EXpenditures reported on jhe Schedulé-are reportéd: on the modified accryal basts of. accountmg. Such
expendltures are, recognized Tollowing the cost princlples ‘contained in the Uniform Gujdance and OMB
‘Compliance Supp!ement wheréin certairytypes ‘of exgenditures are riot alIQWable arare limited as to
remhursement

Sub-racipients:
During the fiscal year énded Jiine 30, ,2021;:fhg—fﬁistﬁc§haq no subsrécipients:
Federal Loans and Loan Guarantees:

‘During the fiscdl year endéd June 30,2021, theDistricthad no outstanding faderal loans payable or foan
glarantees,

Federally Funded Insurance:
Duiing the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District-had o fedetally funded fnsuirance.
Nancash awards:

Buiring the fiscal yéar énded June 30,2021, the Distfict did nct feceive honcash:assistanée GRdef the
National Schaol Luich Program;

Indirect Cost Rate;

The Unifnrm Guidance allows dn organization to elect a'10% dé niinimis fndirect cast rate. For the i scal
y&ir.ended juine 30, 3031, the District didl not elect o use this rate.

Reconciliatlon from the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to Exhibit C-3:.

Tota) Federal Award Expepded s ‘1_?'4‘61‘,9_1;(_1“
ESSER {16,040
Exhlbll‘. 3 & 1,445,870

B0



